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 From the desk of CMD 
 

 
 

Dear Stakeholders, 
 

 
The Webster definition of resilience is 

“The capability of strained body to     recover its 

size and shape after deformation caused 

especially by compressive stress.” 

It’s hard to believe that it was in the final days 

of the financial year i.e. in March,2020 the 

World Health Organisation declared the 

outbreak of COVID-19 as a pandemic. If there 

ever has been a time when the need for global 

resilience has been critical, it is now. 

 
 
The Power to Overcome 
 
At times like this one looks for inspiration. In this context Wayne Muller, a well-known author, 

writes that for thousands of years humankind has suffered famine, war, plague, hunger, and 

countless injustices; it has experienced numberless births and deaths. Each community of people 

has had to find some way to speak about what sustained them or brought them grace—even in 

the midst of terrible sorrow. We have struggled to name this human trait, the universal force that 

makes the grass improbably push its way through concrete, the force that turns the earth, the 

energy that we seem to possess and blesses all life, the essential presence in our deepest nature 

that can never be spoken of with perfect accuracy but yet make us what we are. History is one big 

story of human overcoming. It’s what we are born to do. 

 

In current pandemic situation we have to support the government decision as it is final authority 

who makes decisions and update us about the actual situation of the country as well as world. 

When we emerge out of this crisis, the world will be a very different place. We are witnessing 

many of those changes already. With cloud and the new class of collaboration tools, people are 

discovering that they are able to collaborate with each other just as well working from home, as 

they did in person in the pre-COVID era. Employers are discovering that the productivity is just as 

good, if not better, in this new way of working. 
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Performance 
 
For the company health of the employees and workers are most important so the Employees of 

your company also working in this situation from their home during the lockdown. As our 

company is in the field of construction so all the current site work stopped during the lockdown 

and workers were migrate toothier hometown.  From mid-May company reopen its site work and 

offices as well with the all safety for its all the staff members.  

 

The next few months will be difficult but your management is committed to work with utmost 

efficiency in all the areas of business and give efforts to complete the work within time to mitigate 

the risk. Also the company is planning to come up with new residential project in the current fiscal 

which will help the company in continuing the momentum.  

 

Lastly I extend my sincere thanks on behalf of the board of directors to all the stakeholders of the 

company for their continued trust reposed in the management of the company and thereby being 

a part of the growth path of the company. 

 

Sincerely yours, 
 
Ashokkumar Thakker 
Chairman & managing Director 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:04.09.2020 
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Notice 

 
Notice is hereby given that 9th Annual General Meeting of members of Art Nirman Limited will be 

held on Wednesday, 30th September 2020 at Club Babylon, S P Road, Nr. Science City Circle, 

Bhadaj, Ahmedabad 380060, Gujarat, India at 10:30 a.m.  to transact the following businesses: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

01. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements: 
 
To consider and if though fit, to pass, with or without modification the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2020, including Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2020, the statement of Profit and Loss Account and the cash flow statement for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2020 along with the reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.  
 

02.  Re-appointment of Directors Retiring by Rotation: 
 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Piyushkumar Thakkar (DIN: 07555460), who, retires 
by rotation and being eligible offers, himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Mr. Piyushkumar Thakkar (DIN: 07555460), who retires by rotation at this meeting and 
being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”  
 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
03. To Re-appoint Mr. Ashokkumar Thakker as a Managing Director: 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Special Resolution:- 
 
"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 
203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule 
V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 96 of Articles of Association of the Company, approval 
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. 
Ashokkumar Thakker, as a Managing Director of the Company with effect from September 06, 
2021 to September 05, 2026, as well as the payment of salary, commission and perquisites 
(hereinafter referred to as "remuneration")' upon the terms and conditions as detailed in the 
explanatory statement attached hereto, which is hereby approved and sanctioned with the 

5



authority to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-
appointment and / or agreement in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of 
Directors and Mr. Ashokkumar Thakker. 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors of the Company (including its committee 

thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all 

such acts, deeds and things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may 

be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Committee of 

Directors or Director{s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolution." 

 
04. To Re-appoint Mr. Krunal Mistry as an Independent Director for further period of 5 

years: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:- 

 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) 

and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

and the Board of Directors, Mr. Krunal Mistry (DIN: 07555458), who holds office of Independent 

Director up to 3rd August, 2021 and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for 

independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 

Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) 

of the Act from a Member, signifying his intention to propose Mr. Krunal Mistry’s candidature for 

the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, 

not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 4th  

August, 2021 upto 3rd  August, 2026. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors of the Company (including its committee 

thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give 

effect to this resolution.” 

 

     05. Addition of Object Clause Number 2 by Alteration of Object Clause of Memorandum of 

Association. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification/s, the following Resolution as 

a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 13(6) and subject to compliance with 

provisions of section 110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies Act 2013 and the 

rules framed there under (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), , and 
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subject to the approval of Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, consent of the members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to  alter the Memorandum of Association of the Company by 

adding one more Clause as Clause III(A)(2) to the existing Main Objects of the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company as under:  

2. “To carry on business of trading i.e. to sale, purchase, resell of any type of commodities.”   

   

     06. Approval of loans, investments, guarantee or security u/s 185 of Companies Act, 2013:  

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without Modifications as 

a “Special Resolution”.  

    “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 185 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder as amended from time to time, the consent of the members 

of the Company be and is hereby accorded to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company 

(here ;inafter referred to as the Board, which term shall be deemed to include, unless the context 

otherwise required, any committee of the Board or any director or officer(s) authorised by the 

Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board under this resolution) to advance any loan 

including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any security in  

connection with any loan taken by any entity which is a subsidiary or associate or joint venture 

of the company, (in which any director is deemed to be interested) or to Managing Director or 

Whole time director of the company upto an aggregate sum of INR 100 Crores (Rupees Hundred 

Crores Only) in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, 

provided that such loans are utilized by the borrowing company for its principal business 

activities.” 

    “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution the Board of 

Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things in their 

absolute discretion that may be considered necessary, proper and expedient or incidental for the 

purpose of giving effect to this resolution in the interest of the Company.” 

 

   07. Approval of Members for increase in the limits applicable for making investments / 

extending loans and giving guarantees or providing securities in connection with loans to 

Persons / Bodies Corporate u/s 186 of the Companies Act,2013. 

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without Modifications as 

a “Special Resolution”.  

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any modification or re-enactment thereof for 

the time being in force) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may 

be necessary, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to 

include, unless the context otherwise requires, any committee of the Board or any officer(s) 
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authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board under this resolution), to 

(i) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; (ii) give any guarantee or provide any 

security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and (iii) acquire by way 

of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, as they may in 

their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, subject however that 

the aggregate of the loans and investments so far made in and the amount for which guarantees 

or securities have so far been provided to all persons or bodies corporate along with the additional 

investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed to be made or given or provided  by the 

Company, from time to time, in future, shall not exceed a sum of INR 100 Crores (Rupees Hundred 

Crores only) over and above the limit prescribed u/s 186 of the Companies Act,2013. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take all such 

steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 

 

  

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 4th September, 2020 

  

Registered office: 

410, JBR Arcade, 

Science City Road, Sola, 

Ahmedabad 380060, Gujarat, India. 

CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 

 

By order of the Board 

For Art Nirman Limited 

 

Yesha Yatishbhai Shah 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of him/herself and the proxy need not be the member of the company. A person can
act as proxy on behalf members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in aggregate not more than
10% (ten per cent) of share capital of the Company. However a member holding more than 10%
(ten per cent) of share capital in company may appoint a single person as proxy and in such case
proxy shall not act as proxy for any other member.

2. A form of proxy is herewith attached. The proxies in order to be effective must be submitted at
the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting duly signed by the member.

Proxies submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies etc. must be supported by an appropriate 
resolution/ authority, as applicable. Members/ proxies/ authorized representative are requested 
to bring the attendance slip sent herewith, duly filled in for attending the meeting.  

3. In case of joint holders, only a 1st Joint holder will be permitted to vote.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the company will remain closed from
September 24, 2020 to September 30, 2020 (both days inclusive) for Annual General Meeting for
Financial Year 2019-20.

5. The Statement pursuant to section 102 of Companies act 2013 and /or Regulation 36(3) of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2016 with regard to Explanatory
Statement is herewith annexed to this notice.

6. Members are requested to inform the company of any change in their addresses immediately so
as to enable the Company for any further communication at their correct addresses.

7. The Companies Act provides nomination facility to the members. As a member of the Company
you have an option to nominate any person as your nominee to whom you shares shall vest in case
of unfortunate event of death. It is advisable to avail this facility especially by the members holding
shares on single name. This nomination would avoid process of acquiring rights in shares through
transmission.  In case of joint holders, nomination shall be effective only on death of the all the
joint holders.  If the shares are held in Dematerialized form, the nomination form needs to be
forwarded to your Depository Participant.

8. Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is compulsorily in Dematerialized mode by all the
investors.

9. Members seeking any information or clarification on the accounts are requested to send written
quarries to the Company; at least 10 days before the meeting to unable the management keeps
the required information available at meeting.

9



10. Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20 of the company has been uploaded on website of the 
Company i.e. www.artnirman.com.

11.All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statement shall be open
for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the normal business hours up to the
date of and during the Annual general Meeting.

12.Electronic copy of the Notice along with Annual Report including remote E Voting instructions,
Attendance Slips, Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose emails id are registered with
the Company / Depository Participants for communication purpose. For members who have not
registered their email ids, physical copy of notice along with Annual Report including Remote E
Voting instructions, Attendance Slips, Proxy Form is sent by permitted mode of dispatch.

13.For protection of environment and to conserve natural resources, members are requested to
register their emails, with Company / RTA or Depository Participant to enable company to send
communication including Annual Report, notices, circulars etc. electronically.

14.Members holding shares in physical form in multiple folios on the same name and in the same
order are requested to consolidate all their folios. For this purpose, application may be submitted
to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

15.The members whose name are appear in the Register of Member as on Friday, 4th September, 2020
are eligible for receiving Notice and Annual Report of the 9th Annual General Meeting of the
company.

16.Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the
Member / beneficial owner as on the cutoff date i. e. Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020.

17.In terms of section 108 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules 2014, as amended from time to time and as per Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company is pleased to
provide the remote e voting facility through Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) to its
members holding shares in physical or dematerialized form, as on cutoff date to exercise their
right to vote by electronic means on any or all of the business specified in the accompanying
notice.

This is to clarify that it is not mandatory for a member to vote using the E voting facility and a 
member may avail the facility at his / her discretion, subject to compliance with the instruction 
for Remote E-Voting.     

Further in case of Members who are entitled to vote, amongst members present in person at the 
meeting, but have not exercised right to vote by electronics means, the Chairman of the Company 
shall allow voting by way of poll in terms of Rule 20(4)(xi) of the said rules for the business 
specified in the accompanying notice.  

It is specifically clarified that members who have exercised their right to vote by remote 
electronics means, may be allowed to participate in Annual General Meeting but shall not be 
eligible to vote by way of poll at the meeting as per proviso to Rule 20(4)(vii). 
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The Information with respect to voting process and other instructions regarding remote e-voting 
are detailed in note no. 20. 

18.Mr. Yash Mehta, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad (Membership No. 45267) has been
appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize voting and remote e voting process in fair and transparent
manner.

19.The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 48 hours from the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting make a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if
any, and submit the same to the Chairman of the meeting or a person so authorized by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same.

20.The results shall be declared forthwith by the Chairman or a person so authorized by him in
writing on receipt of report from the Scrutinizer. The Results declared along with Scrutinizer’s
Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.artnirman.com and on the website of CDSL.

21.The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting, subject
to the same being passed with requisite majority.

22.Voting process and other instructions regarding Remote E Voting:

Section A: Voting Process 
The members should follow the following steps to cast their votes electronically: 
a) Open the internet browser and type the following URL:  https://www.evotingindia.com
b) Click on Shareholders – Login.
       Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company. 

d) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login
e) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.comand voted

on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

f) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

- Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 

8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.  

- In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 

number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name 
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in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence 

number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

Dividend 

Bank 

details or 

Date of 

Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 

as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 

login. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field 

as mentioned in instruction (v).  

g) After entering these details appropriately click on ‘SUBMIT’ tab.

h) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the

new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential.

i) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on

the resolutions contained in this Notice.

j) Click on the EVSN:200905068 of Art Nirman Limited on which you choose to vote.

k) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

l) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details

m) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

n) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

vote.

o) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the

Voting page.

p) If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed login password then Enter the User ID

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as

prompted by the system.

q) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for

android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store.

iPhone and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the

Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the

mobile app while voting on your mobile.
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r) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians  
 

- Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.  

- A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 

be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

- After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 

they wish to vote on.  

- The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to 

cast their vote.  

- A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 

for the scrutinizer to verify the same.  

 
s) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

 
Section B: Other instructions regarding Remote e-voting 
 
i) The Remote e-voting period shall commence on Sunday, 27th September 2020 at 09.00 am 

and shall end on Tuesday, 29th September 2020 at 05.00 pm. During this period, Members 

of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 

cut-off date as the 23rd September, 2020 may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting 

module shall be disabled for voting thereafter. 

ii) Institutional Shareholders (i.e. members other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are 

additionally requested to note and follow the instructions mentioned below, if they are first 

time user. 

- Institutional Shareholders and Custodians are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com  and register themselves as Corporate.  

- A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.  

- After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the 

account(s) for which user wishes to vote on. 

- The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  and on approval of the accounts they would be 

able to cast their vote. 
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iii)  Institutional Shareholders (i.e. members other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are 

required to upload the following in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 

the same 

- Copy of the Board Resolution (where institution itself is voting). 

- Power of Attorney issued in favour of the Custodian (if POA is not uploaded earlier) 

as well as Board Resolution of custodian. 

iv)  Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not be allowed to 

change it subsequently or cast the vote again. 

v)  Members holding shares under multiple folios / demat accounts shall choose the voting 

process separately for each of the folios / demat accounts. 

vi)  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under 

help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 

   Place: Ahmedabad 

   Date: 4th September, 2020 

 

 

   Registered office: 

   410, JBR Arcade, 

   Science City Road, Sola, 

   Ahmedabad 380060,  

   Gujarat, India. 

                CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 

 

By order of the Board 

For Art Nirman Limited 

 

Yesha Yatishbhai Shah 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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Details of director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and 

Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India) 

Name of the 
Director 

Piyushkumar 
Chandrakantbhai 
Thakkar 

Ashokumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Krunal Kiritkumar Mistry 

Date of Birth 12/11/1982 
 

13/07/1973 29/04/1982 

DIN 07555460 02842849 07555458 
PAN AEJPT8651B AARPT7698E AKJPM8565F 
Education 
Qualification 

Graduate Graduate D.E. Civil, B.E. Civil   

Date of 
Appointment 

08/09/2017 19/02/2011 04/08/2016 

Experience  More than 12 years of 
experience in Real Estate 
Sector  

More than 25 years of 
experience in Real Estate 
Sector  

More than 14 year of 
experience  

Nature of 
expertise in 
specific 
functional area  

Business Management 
for Real Estate Company. 

Business Management for 
Real Estate Company. 

Provide consultancy services  

Disclosure of 
relationship 
between 
director inter se 

Mr. Piyushkumar 
Thakkar belongs to the 
promoter group. He is 
not related to the any 
existing director as per 
the Companies Act ,2013 
 

Mr. Ashokumar Thakker 
belongs to the promoter 
group.  
 
Dharmisthaben Thakker is 
director of the company y 
and wife of Ashokkumar 
Thakker.  

Mr. Krunal Mistry is 
independent director of the 
company. He is not related to 
the any existing director as 
per the Companies Act ,2013 
 

Names of listed 
entities in which 
the person also 
holds the 
directorship and 
the membership 
of Committees of 
the board; 
 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Remuneration 
Details 
(Including 
setting fees & 
Commission) 
 

8,40,000/- p.a. 12,00,000/- p.a. As per Companies Act, 2013. 
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Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of Companies Act 2013: 

 

Item No.03:  To Re-appoint Mr. Ashokkumar Thakker as a Managing Director: 

 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker is promoter of the company. He has expertise in the field of 

construction and real estate development industry. He has more than 25 years of experience in 

the real estate industry.  

 
Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker is already appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of the 

company from September, 07 2016 to September, 06 2021 for term of 5 consecutive years. 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their 

meeting held on 04th September,2020, the Board of Directors of the company decided to re-

appoint Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker for further period of 5 years with effect from 

September 07, 2021 to September 06,2026 in the board meeting held on 04th September,2020 

with the same terms and conditions and remuneration as earlier stated subject to the approval of 

the members of the company in the Annual General Meeting of the company. 

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the 

requirements of Section 190,196,197 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Brief profile of the Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker is provided in the notice. 

 

The Board of Directors Recommend the Special Resolution for approval by the members.  

 

Except Ashokumar Thakker & Dharmishthaben Thakkar,  None of the Director, KMP and their 

relatives is in any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution except 

to the extent of their shareholding. 

Item No.4: To Re-appoint Mr. Krunal Mistry as an Independent Director for further period 

of 5 years. 

 
Mr. Krunal Kiritkuamr Mistry was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director for term 

of 5 years from August 04, 2016 to August 03, 2021. He has experience of more than 14 years in 

the engineering consultant which helps the company at the time of planning for the construction.  

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their 

meeting held on 04th September,2020, the Board of Directors of the company decided to re-

appoint Mr. Krunal Mistry for further period of 5 years with effect from August 04, 2021 to August 

03, 2026 in the board meeting held on 04th September, 2020 with the same terms and conditions 

and remuneration as earlier stated. The Director has given a declaration to the Board that he meet 

the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
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Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 

152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Krunal Mistry fulfils the conditions specified 

in the Act for his appointment as an Independent Director. 

The Company has also received from the above directors:- 

(i) the consent in writing to act as Director and 

(ii) intimation that they are not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iii) a declaration to the effect that they are not debarred from holding the office of Director 

pursuant to any Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (SEBI). 

Approval of the members of the company in the Annual General Meeting of the company is 

required for reappointment. 

 

Brief profile of the Mr. Krunal Mistry is provided in the notice. 

The Board of Directors Recommend the Special Resolution for approval by the members.  

 

Except Mr. Krunal Mistry None of the other Director, KMP and their relatives is in any way 

concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution except to the extent of their 

shareholding. 

 

Item No.5: Addition of Object Clause Number 2 by Alteration of Object Clause of 

Memorandum of Association. 

 

The Company is operating into the Real Estate Market engaged in construction of Commercial and 

Non Commercial Buildings since its incorporation. Till the date company construct successfully 

residence & commercial buildings by own or by works contract basis. 

 
For the expansion of the business and according to the market scenario and economic condition 

of the country the board of directors of the company decided to enter into one new business 

related to the current business of the company to survive in the market competition. 

 

The board of director of the company decided to add following object in addition to the current 

the current object of the company in their board meeting held on 04th September ,2020 subject to 

the approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting of the company. 

2.“To carry on business of trading i.e. to sale, purchase, resell  of any type of commodities.” 

 

The alteration of Object Clause, in no way, be detrimental to the interest of investors and 

stakeholders. Pursuant to provisions of section 110 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 22 
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of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, alteration of Main Object Clause of 

the Company requires approval of the shareholders by passing special resolution.  

Hence the board recommends the aforesaid Special Resolution for your approval. None of the 

Director, KMP and their relatives is in any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in 

this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. 

Item No.:6: Approval of Loans, Investments, Guarantee or Security Under Section 185 Of 

Companies Act, 2013:  

The Company is expected to render support for the business requirements of other companies in 

the group, from time to time. However, owing to certain restrictive provisions contained in the 

Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was unable to extend financial assistance 

by way of loan, guarantee or security. In the light of amendments notified effective May 7, 2018, 

inter-alia replacing the provisions Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company with the 

approval of members by way of special resolution, would be in a position to provide financial 

assistance by way of loan to other entities in the group or give guarantee or provide security in 

respect of loans taken by such entities, for their principal business activities. The members may 

note that board of directors would carefully evaluate proposals and provide such loan, guarantee 

or security proposals through deployment of funds out of internal resources / accruals and / or 

any other appropriate sources, from time to time, only for principal business activities of the 

entities. Hence, in order to enable the company to advance loan to Managing Director/Whole Time 

Director/Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures /associates/ other Companies/ Firms in which Directors 

are interested directly or indirectly under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires 

approval of members by a Special Resolution.  

The Board of Directors Recommend the Special Resolution for approval by the members.  

Except Ashokumar Thakker, Dharmishthaben Thakkar and Piyushbhai Thakkar None of the 

Director, KMP and their relatives is in any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in 

this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. 

Item No.7: Approval of Members for increase in the limits applicable for making 

investments / extending loans and giving guarantees or providing securities in connection 

with loans to Persons / Bodies Corporate u/s 186 of the Companies Act,2013. 

 

As per the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and 

its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended to date, provides that no company is permitted to, directly 

or indirectly, (a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; (b) give any guarantee or 

provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person; and (c) acquire 

by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, 

exceeding sixty percent of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account 

or one hundred per cent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more. 

Further, the said Section provides that where the giving of any loan or guarantee or providing any 

security or the acquisition as provided under Section 186(2) of the Act, exceeds the limits specified 

therein, prior approval of Members by means of a Special Resolution is required to be passed at a 

general meeting.  
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In view of the above and considering the long term business plans of the Company, which requires 

the Company to make sizeable loans / investments and issue guarantees / securities to persons 

or bodies corporate, from time to time, prior approval of the Members is being sought for the 

same.  

 

The Board of Directors Recommend the Special Resolution for approval by the members.  

Except Ashokumar Thakker, Dharmishthaben Thaakar and Piyushbhai Thakkar None of the 

Director, KMP and their relatives is in any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in 

this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 04th September, 2020                         By order of the Board 

Registered office:                                              For Art Nirman Limited 

410, JBR Arcade,                                                 
Science City Road, Sola,                                  Yesha Yatishbhai Shah 
Ahmedabad 380060,                                       Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Gujarat, India.                                                           
CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 9th Annual Report of the company along with 

Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2020. Further, in 

compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 the company has made all requisite disclosures in the 

Board Report with the objective of accountability and transparency in its operations and to make 

you aware about its performance and future perspective. The Board of Directors feels pleasure 

and is very much thankful to all the stakeholders of the company who have shown their trust and 

interest in Company. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

The highlights of financial figures for the year 2019-20 in comparative format are as under: 
                        (Standalone)  

Particulars for the year ended March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Total Revenue 62,22,98,000 19,51,35,671 

Financial Expense  6,47,00,000 7,98,55,782 

Profit Before Depreciation and Tax 1,98,91,000 2,61,23,887 

Less: Depreciation           75,15,000      

7515,75000 

76,04,179 
Profit Before Tax       1,23,76,000 1,85,19,708 

Less: Tax Expense (including deferred tax)       42,09,000 53,45,978 

Profit After Tax 81,66,000 1,31,73,730 

Surplus Brought Forward 3,38,97,849 1,99,11,298 

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 4,20,64,000 3,38,97,849 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

 During the year under review, your Company has achieved total net sales of INR 6222.98 
lakhs and achieved Net Profit After Tax (NP) of INR 81.66 Lakhs.  
 

 The Directors of the Company are hopeful to gain more good returns in the years to come 
from its under construction scheme “Shree Vishnudhara Gardens” 2 & 3 BHK Apartments, 
showrooms, Shops and offices, Residential and Commercial scheme at Gota, Ahmedabad.  

 

 The company has made works contract with Art Club Private Limited for construction of 
“Club Babylon”, an upcoming leading Club situated near Village Bhadaj, S.P. Ring Road, 
Ahmedabad. The construction and development expenses incurred during the year have 
been shown as Construction work in progress “Club Babylon” for which, Company has 
generated total revenue of INR 3,93,79,000/- during the financial year 2019-20.  
 

IMPACT OF COVID -19 IN THE ORGANISATION: 
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Your company being construction company has many people to work onsite. Starting 11 month of 
the company was very good but due to Covid -19 pandemic in mid-march government declared 
lockdown in whole the country. These has disrupted the construction activity on the ongoing sites. 
Even after the relaxation in lockdown unavailability of labour is causing delays in resuming the 
operation to the normal conditions. Even the management has estimated that the sale/booking   
of the units shall slowdown in the Post COVID and will take around 9-12 months time to gear up.  
Combined effect of all is expected to result in reduction in profitability and crunch in liquidity of 
the company.  

ORGANISATIONAL INITIATIVES IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19 SITUATION: 
 
Your company being construction company has many people to work onsite. Due to COVID-19 
pandemic and lockdown declared by the government, the company helps the labours to reach till 
the home if they reside outside Ahmedabad. And also provide basic facility to all labour. All the 
other staff of the company are instructed to work from home only till the unlock declared by the 
government.  After resuming the office all the safety measures followed in the office.  
 
DIVIDEND: 

Your Board of Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits of the Company for future 
growth of the Company and therefore do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 
31, 2020. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:     

Since there  was  no  unpaid/unclaimed  dividend,  the  provision  of  Section  125  of  the Companies 
Act, 2013 does not apply during the year. 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

During the year, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

RESERVES: 

During the year under review, the Company has closing balance of 4,20,64,000/-as Reserve and 
Surplus as on 31.03.2020. 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, Joint Ventures or associate company during the year. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries and hence company is not required to prepare 
consolidated financial statement for the F. Y. 2019-20. 

PUBLIC DEPOSIT: 

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions 
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the period under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing the 
details of deposits which are not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 
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SHARE CAPITAL: 

The authorized capital of the company is 25 crores, no change made during the financial year 
2019-20.    

12780000 convertible warrant converted into the equity shares of the company so the paid up 
capital of the company is INR 249560000/- .  

Date of Conversion Shares Allotted 
25.04.2019 5130000 
02.05.2019 7650000 
Total 12780000 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT:  

Your company provided loan to the one trust and details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes of 
financial statement. 

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION: 

During the year, Company has entered in to related party transactions at Arm’s length price and 
disclosures in that regard have been made in Annexure A in prescribed format AOC-2 and forms 
part of this report.  

There are no contracts entered into by the Company which are “Not at Arm’s Length basis” and 
hence no disclosure in that regard is made.   

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN: 

The extract of the Annual Return in prescribed format of MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is 
furnished in Annexure B and forms part of this report. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 

 Composition of Board: 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non- 
Executive and Independent Directors in compliance with provisions of Section 149 of 
Companies Act 2013. As on 31st March 2020, the Board of Company comprises of 5(Five) 
Directors. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. 

 Directors whose term is liable to determination by retirement by rotation: 

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013 and its Articles of Association, 
the term of Mr. Piyushkumar Thakkar (DIN: 07555460), being Executive Director, is liable 
to retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment as Director of the 
Company. Necessary resolution for his reappointment is placed before you for your 
approval in Annual General Meeting.   

 Declaration from Independent Director: 
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The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company 
that they continue to meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of 
the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations. The Independent 
Directors complied with code of conduct.  

Therefore Board is duly composed as per the Companies Act 2013 provisions and SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. There is no change held in the 
composition of Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2019-20. 

 
        BOARD AND COMMITTEE COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS: 

 Board Meeting and Composition: 
 

The Board of Directors met 14 times during the financial year 2019- 2020 in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The 

intervening gap between two board meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and as per Secretarial Standard-1. The prescribed quorum was 

presented for all the Meetings and Directors of the Company actively participated in the 

meetings and contributed valuable inputs on the matters brought before the Board of 

Directors from time to time. 

 

   14 board meeting are held as under: 

 

 25.04.2019 
 

 11.09.2019 

 02.05.2019 
 

 30.09.2019 

 30.05.2019 
 

 05.11.2019 

 08.07.2019 
 

 13.11.2019 

 19.08.2019  23.12.2019                    
 

 26.08.2019  28.12.2019 
 

 03.09.2019  31.01.2020 
 

Name of Director Designation Category No of Board 
Meetings 
entitled to 
attend during 
the year. 

No of Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during the 
year 

Ashokkumar Thakker  
 

CMD 
 

Promoter 14 14 

Piyushkumar Thakkar 
 

ED Promoter 14 14 

Dharmisthaben Thakkar  NED Promoter 14 13 
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Krunal Mistry  
 

NED Independent 14 14 

Hemang Shah 
 

NED  Independent 14 6 

 

CMD – Chairman and Managing Director, ED – Executive Director, NED- Non- Executive         

Director 

 Meeting of Independent Directors: 
 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors duly met on 15thFebruary, 

2020in absence of other non-independent Directors and reviewed the performance of Non 

Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, reviewed the performance of Chairperson 

of the Company, taking into account the views of the other Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors.  

 Committee Meeting and Composition 
 

The Company has three committees viz; Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee which has been established as a part of 

the better corporate governance practices and is in compliance with the requirements of 

the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes. 

 Audit Committee: 
 

The Audit Committee of the Company was originally constituted on 07.09.2016 in 

compliance with requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and provisions of 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of 

the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time. It adheres to the 

terms of reference which is prepared in compliance with Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.  

7 (Seven) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year 2019-20 at the Registered 
Office of the Company, respectively on 25.04.2019, 02.05.2019, 30.05.2019, 19.08.2019, 
30.09.2019, 13.11.2019, 05.03.2020. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. 

Pursuant to provisions of Rule 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules 

2014, Vigil Mechanism is being reviewed by the Audit Committee. The provisions of 

Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 are not applicable to the Company as 

securities of the Company are listed on SME platform of Stock Exchange.  

The Members of the Committee are:- 
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Name Category Position Number of meetings 
entitled to attend 

Number of 
meetings 
attended 

Krunal Mistry 
 

Independent Chairman 7 7 

Ashokkumar 
Thakker 
 

Promoter Member 7 7 

Hemang Shah 
 

Independent Member 7 7 

 

Two third of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors and all the 

members are financially literate. The composition, role, functions and powers of the Audit 

Committee are in line with the requirements of applicable laws and regulations. The Audit 

Committee shall oversee financial reporting process and disclosures, review financial 

statements, internal audit reports, related party transactions, financial and risk 

management policies, auditors qualifications, compliance with Accounting Standard etc. 

and oversee compliance with Stock Exchange and requirements concerning financial 

statements and fixation of legal audit fee as well as payment for other services etc. 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was originally constituted on 07.09.2016 

in accordance with SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014 as amended from time to time.  

The Board has in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act,  2013,  formulated  the  policy  setting  out  the  criteria  for  determining 

qualifications,  positive  attributes,  independence  of  a  Director and policy relating to 

remuneration of Directors, Key managerial Personnel and other employees. The said policy 

is available on the website of the Company.  

5 (Five) meetings of the committee were held during the year 2019-20 at the Registered 

Office of the Company on 30.05.2019, 19.08.2019, 03.09.2019, 11.09.2019 and 28.12.2019.  

the Members of the Committee are as follow: 

Name Category Position Number of 
meetings entitled 
to attend 

No. of 
meetings 
attended 

Krunal Mistry 
 

Independent Chairman 5 5 

Hemang Shah 
 

Independent Member 5 5 

Dharmisthaben 
Thakkar 
 

Non Executive  
Director 

Member 5 5 
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 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 

      The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was originally constituted on 07.09.2016 in 

compliance with provisions of section 178 of Companies Act 2013 and requirements of 

Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. Company Secretary is the Compliance 

Officer, who acts as the Secretary to the Committee.  

4 (Four) meetings were held during the year 2019-20 at the Registered Office of the 

Company on 30.04.2019, 20.07.2019, 22.10.2019 and 07.01.2020. 

The Members of the Committee are as under: 

Name Category Position Number of 
meetings 
entitled to 
attend 

Number of 
meetings 
attended 

Krunal Mistry 
 

Independent Chairman 4 4 

Ashokkumar 
Thakker 
 

Promoter Member 4 4 

Hemang Shah 
 

Independent Member 4 4 

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee looks into shareholders’ complaints related to 

transfer of shares, non-receipts of balance sheet besides complaints from SEBI, Stock 

Exchanges, Court and various Investor Forums. It oversees the performance of the 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, and recommends measures for overall improvement in the 

quality of investor services. The Company is in compliance with the SCORES, which was 

initiated by SEBI for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redress 

system and online redressal of all the shareholder’s complaints. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT: 
 
Pursuant to provisions of section 178 read with 134(3)(e) of Companies Act 2013, The 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has approved the criteria and process for 

identification/ appointment of Directors which are as under: 

 Criteria for Appointment: 
 

             The proposed Director shall meet all statutory requirements and should: 
 Possess highest values, ethics and integrity. 
 Not have any direct or indirect conflict with business operations. 
 Be willing to devote time and efforts.  
 Have relevant experience.  
 Have understanding about corporate functionality.  
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 Understand real value of stakeholders. 
 

 Process for identification of Directors / Appointment of Directors: 
 

 Board Members may suggest any potential person to the Chairman of the Company 
meeting the above criteria. If the chairman deems fit, recommendation will be made 
by him to NRC.  

 Chairman himself can also recommend a person to NRC. 
 NRC shall process and evaluate the proposal and shall submit their 

recommendation to Board. 
 Board shall consider such proposal on merit and decide suitably.   

 
 Criteria for Performance Evaluation: 

 

The Board considered and approved criteria for performance evaluation of itself and that 

of its committees and individual directors. 

 Criteria for Board Evaluation:  
 

 Focus on strategic decisions. 
 Qualitative discussion and processes.     

 

 Criteria for Committee Evaluation: 
 

 Fulfillment of allotted responsibilities.  
 Effectiveness of recommendation, meetings. 

 

 Criteria for Independent and Non Independent Directors’ evaluation: 
 

 Contribution through their experience and expertise. 
 Focus on Stakeholders’ interest.  

 

MANNER OF EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 

The Evaluation of Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was carried out as per process 

and criteria laid down by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee. 

The obtaining and consolidation of feedback from all Directors in this regards, was coordinated 

by the Chairman of Independent Directors’ meeting for Board and Non-Independent Directors 

while the process of evaluation of the Independent Directors was coordinated by the Chairman of 

the Company. Based on this, Chairman of the Company brief the Board and each of the Individual 

Directors, as applicable. 

REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The Company has formulated a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company which is as under: 
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A) Components of Remuneration: 
 

 Fixed Pay comprising Basic Salary, HRA, Car Allowance (applicable to General Managers 
&above employees), Conveyance Allowances / Reimbursement, Company’s contribution 
to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Gratuity, etc.  

 

 Variable Pay, which is either in the form of: Commission to Managing Directors and   
Commission to Whole-time Directors 

 

B) Annual Appraisal process: 
 

-  Annual Appraisals are conducted, following which annual increments and promotions in  

deserving cases are decided once in a year based on:  

-  Employees self-assessment 
-  Assessment by Immediate Superior and 
-  Assessment by Head of Department 
 

Annual Increment leading to an increase in Fixed Pay consists of Economic Rise based on 

All India Consumer Price Index published by the Government of India or Internal Survey 

wherein inflation on commonly used items is calculated. 

C) Remuneration of Independent Directors: 

The Company has formulated a policy for the remuneration of Independent Directors as  
follows: 
 

 Reimbursement of Expenses incurred by Independent Directors for attending any meeting 
of the Board.  

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: 

Mr. Kirtar Munshi resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 

September 09, 2019. 

Mr. Chetankumar Modi appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the Company on September 11, 

2019. 

COMPANY SECRETARY: 

Ms. Ziral Soni resigned from the post of Company Secretary of the company w. e. f. 10.04.2019. 

Ms. Yesha Yatishbhai Shah, a member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India is holding post 

of Company Secretary of the Company from June 01, 2019. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICER: 

The Compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Yesha Yatishbhai Shah, being the member of 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India, designated as Company Secretary and holding the post 

of compliance officer since June 01, 2019. 
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STATEMENT ON FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee annually evaluates the performance of individual 

directors, Committees and of the Board as a Whole in accordance with the formal system adopted 

by the Board. Further, the Board also, regularly in their Board Meeting held for various purposes, 

evaluates the performance of the individual directors, committees and of the Board as a whole. 

The Board considers the recommendation made by Nomination and Remuneration Committee in 

regard to the evaluation of Board Members.  

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that: 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures. 
 

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the Company for that period under review. 
 

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 
 

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
 

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF 

THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT:    

After the close the Financial Year on 31st March 2020 and before the date of the Report, no material 

changes affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred:  

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:  

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concerns status and Company’s operations in future. 
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AUDITORS: 

 Statutory Auditor: 
 

M/s. Arpan Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN.: 125049W, Peer Review 

Certificate No. 011646) Ahmedabad appointed as a Statutory Auditors of the Company to 

hold office until the conclusion of 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on FY 

2023-2024.” 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. Arpan Shah & 

Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, in their report. 

 Board’s Comment on the Auditors’ Report: 

Notes to Accounts & Auditors remarks in the Auditors’ report are self explanatory and do 

not call for any further comments. 

 Secretarial Auditor: 
 

As required under provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 

thereunder, the Board has appointed the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, M/s Yash 

Mehta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, for conducting the Secretarial Audit 

for the FY 2019-20. 

Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 issued by the Secretarial Auditor of the Company 

for the year ended on March 31, 2020 is attached to the Director’s Report as Annexure- 

C. 

 Board’s Comment on the Secretarial Audit Report: 
 

1. During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting 
held on 25.04.2019 allotted 51,30,000 equity shares upon conversion of warrants 
and further allotted 76,50,000 equity shares upon conversion of warrants on 
02.05.2019. Pursuant to such allotment, company has not received the following 
disclosures from Promoters/Acquirers within due date: 

 
The Company has not received disclosures under Regulation 29(1) and/or 29(2) of 
the said Regulations pursuant to allotment of equity shares upon conversion of 
warrants within due course of time from the Promoters/acquirer. 

 

The issue pertains to the different interpretation of regulations by the promoters and 

promoters group and there was no malafide intention however as and when the 

disclosures were required by the Stock Exchange (“NSE Emerge”), promoters of the 

Company provided the same to the Company without making any delay.   
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2. The promoter/acquirer has not made an Open Offer/Public Announcement under 
Regulation 3(2) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011.  

 
However, the promoter/acquirer has filed an exemption application to make an 
Open Offer/ Public Announcement with SEBI under Regulation 11 of the said 
Regulations. 
 

Your Directors have noted the remarks mentioned by Secretarial Auditor in his report 

and clarifies that the liability to make an Open Offer/ Public Announcement lies with 

the promoter and promoter group, however on seeking clarification your Directors 

came to know that the promoters are of the view that change in % of holding of shares 

of the Company before and after allotment of shares upon conversion of warrants, is 

not more than 5% as required under the said regulation on diluted basis and promoters 

and promoters group have also clarified it while replying to Query raised by NSE on 

listing Application.  

 

Further the promoter and promoter group has also filed an exemption Application to 

SEBI on 31.03.2020 which can be taken into the consideration.  

 

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

 
The Company has applied for listing of equity shares allotted upon conversion 
of warrants as follows.  

 
Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Allotment 

No of 
shares 
allotted 

Due date of 
filing Listing 
Application 

Actual Date of 
filing Listing 
Application 

Delay 
period 

1. 25.04.2019 51,30,000 15.05.2019 07.06.2019 23 days 
2. 02.05.2019 76,50,000 22.05.2019 10.06.2019 19 days 

 

Your Directors have noted the comments by the Secretarial Auditor and clarifies that 

the issue of Convertible warrants was regulated by SEBI (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2009 whereas Allotment of Equity shares upon 

Conversion of Warrants was regulated by SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2018 and in both the regulation there is no prescribed time 

limit for making Listing Application for SME Listed Company. 

 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015; 
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The company has not filed shareholding pattern within 10 days of allotment of 
equity shares upon conversion of warrants as per the Regulation 31(1)(c) of 
stated Regulations.  

 
However, the company has filed the shareholding patterns with Stock Exchange, as 
per above regulations as follows: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Allotment 

No of shares 
allotted 

Due date of filing 
Shareholding 
Pattern 

Actual Date 
of filing 

Delay 
period 

1. 25.04.2019 51,30,000 04.05.2019 07.06.2019 33 days 
2. 02.05.2019 76,50,000 11.05.2019 10.06.2019 29 days 

 
Your Directors have noted the remarks mentioned by Secretarial Auditor in his report 

and clarifies that there was no malafide intention and the reason for making delayed 

listing application was genuine as there was no company secretary and/or compliance 

officer during the time of allotment of shares.  

 
 Cost Audit & Cost Record: 

Central Government has notified audit of the cost records maintained by the company in 

respect of the Products/services manufactured by the company for the year under review. 

Our company is not manufactured any products so it is not required to be maintained any 

cost record and conducting any cost audit as per central government direction under 

section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) rules, 

2014.   

 Internal Audit: 

D. K. Thakkar & Co, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad was appointed as Internal Auditor 

of the Company to conduct Internal audit pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are 

provided in separate annexure forming part of this Report as Annexure-D.  

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled 

thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by 

the members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of 
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the Company. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to 

the Company Secretary in this regard. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the Company and 

hence no disclosures have been made in this regard. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGSAND OUTGO 

The Company is not engaged in manufacturing of goods and hence Company does not conserve 

energy. Company has neither adopted any Technology nor has spent amount for adoption of 

Technology during the year. There is no amount of Foreign Exchange inflow or outflow during the 

year and hence no disclosures have been made in this regard.  

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY (EHS) 

The Company accords the highest priority to health, environment and safety. The Company does 

not carry on manufacturing operations. The Company takes at most care for the employees and 

ensures compliance with the applicable rules and regulation applicable to the Company.  

STATEMENT REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 

MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company has developed risk management policy. The Company has in place, a mechanism to 

identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks towards the key business objectives of the 

Company. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Risk Management is being taken care by the 

Audit Committee of the Company. 

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements. The Board has inter alia reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 

internal financial controls relating to its financial statements.  

During the year, no reportable material weakness was observed. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

As stipulated in Rule 34(2)(e) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed as 

Annexure E and forms part of this Annual Report.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Your Company has been complying with the principals of good Corporate Governance over the 

years and is committed to the highest standards of compliance. Pursuant to regulation 15(2)(b) 

of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the compliance with the corporate governance provisions 

as specified in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and para C, D and E 
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of schedule V shall not apply to the listed entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME 

Exchange. 

Therefore, the Corporate Governance Report is not applicable on the Company and certificates 

related thereto have not been obtained and therefore not disclosed in the Annual Report. 

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 

ACCOUNT: 

Pursuant to Para F of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, there are no shares held in the 

Demat Suspense Account or Unclaimed Suspense Account.  

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.  
 
The Company has always been committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to 
its employees. Your Directors further state that during the year under review there were no cases 
filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Directors place on record  their  sincere  thanks  to  the  Bankers,  Business  associates, 

consultants, customers, employees for their continued support extended to your Companies 
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Date:  04.09.2020 
Place: Ahmadabad 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker  
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 02842849 
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Annexure A 

To the Director’s Report 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties 

Form No. AOC 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Regulation 34(3) Read with Para A of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. 
 

 
Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain Arm’s Length transactions under third proviso thereto- 
 

 During the F.Y. 2019-20, Company has not entered into any related party transactions 
however ongoing related party transactions of previous year are as follows, which all are 
at Arm’s Length basis: 

 

Particulars Details Details Details 
 

Name of 
Related Party 
and nature of 
Relationship 

M/s Art Club 
Private Limited, 
Directors of the 
company are 
directors of said 
related party 

Art Club Private Limited, 
Directors of the company are 
directors of said related party & 
Mrs. Dharmisthaben Thakkar, 
Director of the company 

Dharmishthaben 
Thakkar 
Director of the 
Company 

Nature of 
Contract 
/arrangements 
/ transactions 

Works Contract Tripartite Agreement Lease Agreement 

Duration of 
Contracts / 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

4 years 5 years 5 years 

Salient terms 
of the 
Contract. 

Works Contract 
for Club Babylon 
and Four Point by 
Shereton Hotel 

Development of first club 
facility infrastructure 

Taken on Lease 
Property of director 
admesuring 7128 Sq. 
Mtrs.  

Justification 
for entering 
into such 
contract / 
arrangement 
/transaction. 

Employees of the 
Company hold 
good command 
with experience in 
Works Contracts. 

Employees of the Company hold 
good command with experience 
in development of projects.  

For the construction 
of temporary club 
and office as the land 
has good location for 
building club and it’s 
office.  
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Date of 
approval by 
the Board / 
Audit 
Committee 

21.12.2016 01.04.2016 21.02.2017 

Amount paid 
as Advance if 
any. 

N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Date of General 
meeting in 
which 
Ordinary 
resolution was 
passed 

16.08.2016 29.04.2016 16.08.2016 

 

 

Date:  04.09.2020 
Place: Ahmadabad 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker  
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 02842849 
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Annexure B 

MGT-9 -EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the                                             
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
1. Registration and other Details: 

1) Name of Company Art Nirman Limited 

2) CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 
3) Date of Incorporation 19.02.2011 
4) Category and Sub 

Category 
Public Limited - Non Government Company having Share 
Capital.    

5) Address of Registered 
office 

Art Nirman Limited 
410, JBR Arcade,  Nr. R K Royal Hall, Science City Main Road, 
Sola, Ahmedabad 380060. 
(O) +91 88664 04499 
(E) info@artnirman.com 
(W) www.artnirman.com 

6) Whether listed or not Yes. 
7) Name, Address and 

contact details of Registrar 
to Issue and Share  
Transfer Agent 

Sharex Dynamic India Private Limited 
Unit-I, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kulra 
Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400 072, Maharashtra, India. 
(O) 022 2851 5606 / 44 
(F) 022 2851 2885 
(E) sharexindia@vsnl.com 

 
2. Principle Business Activities of the Company:  

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are 

given below: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main 

product or services 

NIC Code of the Product / Services 

as per National Product 

Classification for Service Sectors 

2010.  

% of total 

turnover of 

the Company 

1 Construction of buildings carried 

out on own-account basis or on a 

fee or contract basis. 

41001 100% 

 

3. Particulars of Holding Subsidiary and Associate Companies: 
Sr. No Name of the 

Company 

Address of 

the Company 

CIN / 

GLN 

Holding / 

Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

Not Applicable 
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IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

 

(A) Category-wise Share Holding:  
 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year [As on 01-April-2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year[As on 31-March-2020] 

% 

Change 

during 

the year  
 Demat Phys

ical 

Total % of 

Total 

Share

s 

Demat Ph

ysi

cal 

Total % of 

Total 

Share

s 

A. Promoters                   

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 

HUF 

5600000 0 5600000 45.99

2 

1838000

0 

0 18380000 73.65

0 

27.658 

b) Central 

Govt. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) State 

Govt.(s) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 

shareholding 

of Promoter 

(A) 

5600000 0 5600000 45.99

2 

1838000

0 

0 1838000

0 

73.65

0 

27.658 

B. Public 

Shareholding 

         

(1)Institution 
         

a) Mutual 

Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Banks / FI 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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c) Central Govt 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) State 

Govt(s) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Venture 

Capital Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Insurance 

Companies 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

g) FIIs 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 h) Foreign 

Venture 

Capital Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) Others 

(specify) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total 

(B)(1):- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2. Non-

Institutions 

         

a) Bodies Corp. 
48000 0 48000 0.394 12000 0 12000 0.048 (0.346) 

i) Indian 
48000 0 48000 0.394 12000 0 12000 0.048 (0.346) 

ii) Overseas 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Individuals 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital up to 

Rs. 1 lakh 

246000 0 246000 2.020 240000 0 240000 0.962 (1.058) 

39



ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital in 

excess of Rs 1 

lakh 

6282000 0 6282000 51.59

3 

6324000 0 6324000 25.34

1 

(26.252) 

 

a) Others  
(specify): 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Non Resident 

Indians 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Overseas 

Corporate 

Bodies 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Foreign 

Nationals 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Clearing 

Members 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Trusts 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Foreign Bodies 

- D R 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total 

(B)(2):- 

6576000 0 6576000 54.00

7 

6576000 0 6576000 26.35

1 

(27.656

) 

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ 

(B)(2) 

6576000 0 6576000 54.00

7 

6576000 0 6576000 26.35

1 

(27.656

) 

C. Shares held 

by Custodian 

for GDRs & 

ADRs 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

1217600

0 

0 1217600

0 

100.0

0 

2495600

0 

0 2495600

0 

100.0

0 

0 
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B) Shareholding of Promoter (including promoter group): 

Sr.N

o. 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year % 

change 

in 

sharehol

ding 

during 

the year 

 

  
No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

compa

ny 

%of 

Shares 

Pledged 

/ 

encumb

ered to 

total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

compan

y 

%of 

Shares 

Pledged / 

encumber

ed to total 

shares 

1 

Ashokkumar 

Raghuram 

Thakker 

5594995 45.951 0 

 

1576499

5 

 

63.171 

 

0 

 

17.22 

2 

Dharmisthaben 

Ashokkumar 

Thakkar 

5000 0.041 0 

 

875000 

 

3.506 

 

0 

 

3.465 

3 

Thakkar 

Raghurambhai 

Vasrambhai HUF 

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 

 

0.00 

4 

Ashokbhai 

Raghurambhai 

Thakkar HUF 

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5 

Raghurambhai 

Vasrambhai 

Thakkar 

1 0.00 0.00 

 

870001 

 

3.486 

 

0 

 

3.486 

6 
Alpeshkumar 

Chimanbhai Patel 
1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7 
Piyushkumar C. 

Thakkar 
1 0.00 0.00 

 

870001 

 

3.486 

 

0 

 

3.486 
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C) Change in Promoter's Shareholding(Please specify, if there is no change)   
      

Sr
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the Beginning Shareholding at the end % of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

No.of 
Shares at 
the 
beginnin
g       /end 
of the 
Year 

% of 
the 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

Date Increasin
g/Decrea
sing in 
sharehol
ding 

Reason No.Of 
shares 

 

1 Ashokkumar 
Raghuram 
Thakker 

5594995 45.951 01-04-
2019 

    

    25-04-
2019 

3390000 Conv. of 
Warrant 
into equity 
shares 

8984995 36.003 

    02-05-
2019 

6780000 Conv. of 
Warrant 
into equity 
shares 

15764995 63.171 

 - Closing balance   31-03-
2020 

  15764995 63.171 

         
2 Dharmishhaben 

Ashokkumar 
Takkar 

5000 0.041 01-04-
2019 

    

    25-04-
2019 

870000 Conv. of 
Warrant 
into equity 
shares 

875000 3.506 

 - Closing balance   31-03-
2020 

  875000 3.056 

         
3 Raghurambhai 

Vasrambhai 
Thakkar 

1 0 01-04-
2019 

    

    02-05-
2019 

870000 Conv. of 
Warrant 
into equity 
shares 

870001 3.486 
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 - Closing balance   31-03-
2020 

  870001 3.486 

         
4 Piyushkumar 

C.Thakkar 
1 0 01-04-

2019 
    

    25-04-
2019 

870000 Conv. of 
Warrant 
into equity 
shares 

870001 3.486 

 - Closing balance   31-03-
2020 

  870001 3.486 

 

D) Change in Top 10 Shareholders (other than Promotes and Directors) 
 

Sr 
N
o 

Name  No. of 
Shares at 
the 
beginnin
g / end of 
the year  

% of the 
Shares 
of the 
Compan
y 

Date Increasing / 
Decreasing 
in 
Shareholdin
g 

Reaso
n 

No. of 
Shares  

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan
y 

1 Ajaykumar 
Jamnalal 
Pujara           

918000 7.539 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No change  91800
0 

3.678 

                  
2 Kevin 

Arvindkumar 
Thakkar           

522000 4.287 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

 No change  52200
0 

2.092 

                  
3 Maulik 

Arvindbhai 
Thakkar           

516000 4.238 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

 No change  51600
0 

2.068 

                  
4 Desai 

Amratbhai 
Shakkarbhai         

432000 5.681 01-04-
2019 

      

       23-08-
2019 

6000 Buy 43800
0 

1.755 

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

  43800
0 

1.755 
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5 Nareshkumar 
Amratlal 
Pujara HUF .   

414000 3.400 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change  41400
0 

1.659 

                  
6 Chiragkumar 

Jayantilal 
Thakkar      

414000 3.400 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change  41400
0 

1.659 

                  
7 Kamlesh 

Amrutlal 
Pujara             

414000 3.400 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change  41400
0 

1.659 

                  
8 Thakkar 

Mayurkumar 
Jayantilal 
(HUF) 

402000 3.302 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change Buy 40200
0 

1.611 

                  
9 Vineet 

Sureshchandr
a Arya           

360000 4.734 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change  36000
0 

1.443 

                 
10 Thakker 

Mahesh 
Mahadev              

240000 1.971 01-04-
2019 

      

 -Closing 
Balance 

    31-03-
2020 

No Change  24000
0 

0.962 

                  
 

E) Changes in Shareholding of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

i) Ashokkumar Thakker: 
 

Shareholding of each 

Directors and each 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year as on April 01, 2019 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

Year 
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Key Managerial 

Personnel 

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company 

No. of shares % of total shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of 

the year on April 01, 

2019. 

5594995 45.951 5594995 45.951 

April 25,2019 

Conversion of 

warrant into equity 

3390000 36.003 8984995 36.003 

May 02, 2019 

Conversion of 

warrant into equity 

6780000 63.171 15764995 63.171 

At the end of the 

year as at March 31, 

2020. 

15764995 63.171 15764995 63.171 

  

ii) Dharmishthaeben Thakker: 
 

Shareholding of each Directors 

and each Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Shareholding at the 

beginningof the year as on 

April 01, 2019 

Cumulative Shareholding during 

theYear 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year on 

April 01, 2019 
5000 0.041 5000 0.041 

April 25,2019 Conversion of 

warrant into equity 
870000 3.506 

875000 
3.506 

At the end of the year as at 

March 31, 2020 

875000 
3.506 

875000 
3.506 

 
i) Krunal Kiritkumar Mistry: 

 

Shareholding of 

each Directors 

and each Key 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year as on April 01, 2019 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

Year 
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Managerial 

Personnel 

No. of shares % of totalshares of 

thecompany 

No. of shares % of totalshares of 

thecompany 

At the beginning 

of the year on 

April 01, 2019 

6000 0.049 6000 0.049 

At the end of the 

year as at March 

31, 2020 

6000 0.024 6000 0.024 

 

ii) Piyushkumar C. Thakkar 
 

Shareholding of each Directors 

and each Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Shareholding at the 

beginningof the year as on 

April 01, 2019 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year on 

April 01, 2019 
1 0.00 1 0.00 

April 25, 2019  Conversion of 

Warrant into equity shares 
870000 

3.486 
870001 3.486 

At the end of the year as at 

March 31, 2020 
870001 3.486 870001 3.486 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS:         

(INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars Secured 
Loan 

Unsecured Loan Deposits Total 

Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the period 

4314.10 649.62 - 2340.02 

Change in indebtedness 
during the year 

(1258.90)    (329.07) - (423.54) 

Indebtedness at the end of 
the year.  

3055.20 320.55 - 3375.75 
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VI. REMUNERATION:  

a) Managing Director / Whole Time Director and / or Manager / others Director. 
 

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration Managing Director Total Amount 
1 Gross Salary   
   (a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in   section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

12,00,0000/- 

 

b) Remuneration to other Directors: 
 

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration Name of other 
Directors  

Total Amount 

1 Gross Salary - - 
   (a) Salary as per provisions contained in   

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
Piyushkumar C. 
Thakkar 

8,40,000 

   (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 

- - 

   (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - 

 

a) Remuneration to KMP other than MD / Manager / WTD: 
 

Sr. No Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of KMP Total Amount (Gross) 

1 Gross Salary   
   (a) Salary as per 

provisions contained in   
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,  1961 

Mr. Kirtar Munshi 
CFO 
(April 2019 to 9 September 2019 ) 

9,00,000 

Mr. Chetankumar Modi 
CFO 
(11 September 2019 to March 2020) 

2,36,000 

  Ms. Yesha Shah 
Company Secretary 
(June 2019 to March 2020) 
 

2,23,000 

 
VI. Penalty / Punishment and Compounding of offences: 

Type Section of 

the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of 

Penalty/Punishment/ 

Compounding fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal 

made if 

any (Give 

details) 

- - - - - - 
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Annexure C 
 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
The Members,  
ART NIRMAN LIMITED  
CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 
410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road,  
Sola, Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380060 India. 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by   ART NIRMAN LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we  
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the 
provisions of;  
 
1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;  
 
2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under; 
 
3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder - 

However, there were no instances of Import, Export, FDI, ODI or ECB during the year under 
review.  

 

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
 
During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held 
on 25.04.2019 allotted 51,30,000 equity shares upon conversion of warrants and 
further allotted 76,50,000 equity shares upon conversion of warrants on 02.05.2019. 
Pursuant to such allotment, company has not received the following disclosures from 
Promoters/Acquirers within due date: 
 
The Company has not received disclosures under Regulation 29(1) and/or 29(2) of the 
said Regulations pursuant to allotment of equity shares upon conversion of warrants 
within due course of time from following Promoters/acquirer. 
 
However, the company has immediately filed the same with Stock Exchange as and when 
received. 
 

 
The promoter/acquirer has not made an Open Offer/Public Announcement under 
Regulation 3(2) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011.  
 
However, the promoter/acquirer has filed an exemption application to make an Open 
Offer/ Public Announcement with SEBI under Regulation 11 of the said Regulations. 
 
The Company has received annual disclosure under Regulation 30(1) and 30(2) of the 
said Regulations, within due course of time for the year under review.  
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  
 

Sr. 
No
. 

Name of 
Acquirer 

Pre-
sharehold
ing 

No of 
shares 
allotted 

Post-
shareholdi
ng 

% 
chan
ge 

Disclosu
res 
given 
under 
Regulati
on 

Due date 
of 
Disclosur
es to be 
received 
by 
Company 

Actual 
Date of 
receipt 
of 
Disclosu
res 

1. Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

55,94,995 33,90,000 89,84,995 27.84
% 

29(2) 27.04.19 08.06.19 

2. Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

89,84,995 67,80,000 1,57,64,995 27.17
% 

29(2) 04.05.19 08.06.19 

3. Dharmisthabe
n Thakkar 

5,000 8,70,000 8,75,000 7.14
% 

29(1) 27.04.19 08.06.19 

4. Raghurambha
i Thakkar 

1 8,70,000 8,70,001 5.02
% 

29(1) 04.05.19 08.06.19 

5. Piyushkumar 
Thakkar 

1 8,70,000 8,70,001 5.02
% 

29(1) 27.04.19 08.06.19 
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The Company has received required disclosures under Regulation 7(1)(b) during the 
year under review.  

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
 
The Company has applied for listing of equity shares allotted upon conversion of 
warrants as follows.  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Allotment 

No of 
shares 
allotted 

Due date of 
filing Listing 
Application 

Actual Date of 
filing Listing 
Application 

Delay 
period 

1. 25.04.2019 51,30,000 15.05.2019 07.06.2019 23 days 
2. 02.05.2019 76,50,000 22.05.2019 10.06.2019 19 days 

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015; 
 
The company has not filed shareholding pattern within 10 days of allotment of 
equity shares upon conversion of warrants as per the Regulation 31(1)(c) of 
stated Regulations. The details of allotments made during the year under review 
are as under:  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Allotment 

No of 
shares 
allotted 

Paid up capital 
pre-allotment 
(In Rs.) 

Paid up capital 
post-allotment 
(In Rs.) 

% of 
increase 
in paid up 
capital 

1. 25.04.2019 51,30,000 
@ Rs. 
16.00 
(Rs.10 
Face Value 
+ Rs. 6.00 
Premium) 

12,17,60,000/- 17,30,60,000/- 42 % 
(Rounded 
off to the 
nearest 
Decimal) 

2. 02.05.2019 76,50,000 
@ Rs. 
16.00 
(Rs.10 
Face Value 
+ Rs. 6.00 
Premium) 

17,30,60,000/- 24,95,60,000/- 44% 
(Rounded 
off to the 
nearest 
Decimal) 

 
However, the company has filed the shareholding patterns with Stock Exchange, as per 
above regulations as follows: 
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Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Allotment 

No of 
shares 
allotted 

Due date of 
filing 
Shareholding 
Pattern 

Actual Date of 
filing 

Delay 
period 

1. 25.04.2019 51,30,000 04.05.2019 07.06.2019 33 days 
2. 02.05.2019 76,50,000 11.05.2019 10.06.2019 29 days 

 
(f) Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Orders, Notifications and Directives issued under the 

above statue to the extent applicable. 
 
The following other laws are applicable to the Company: 
 

1. The Building and other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and 
Condition of Services) Act 1996. 

2. Town & Country Planning Acts and Development Control Regulations & Building Bye 
Laws as applicable to at various locations. 

3. The Ownership Flats & Apartments Ownership Act as applicable at various locations.  
4. Environment Protection Act 1986. 

 
We have also examined the compliance with respect to Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India: 

 
(i)  Secretarial Standards with regard to the Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and 

General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii)  The Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review; therefore 

Secretarial Standards on Dividend (SS-3) was not applicable.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We further state that, it is our responsibility to express an opinion on the compliance with the 
applicable laws and maintenance of records based on the audit.  
 
The audit was conducted in accordance with applicable Standards and we have complied with 
statutory and regulatory requirements and the Audit was planned and performed to obtain 
reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of Records.  
 
Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, 
there is an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be 
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the 
Standards. 
 
We further report that during the year under review, the Company has Complied with all the 
aspects of the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned 
above subject to the observations made in this report. The Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted. The changes in the composition of Board that took place during the year under 
review were carried out in compliance of the provisions of Act.  
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Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings in advance in due 
compliances of law. Decisions at the meetings of Board of Directors / Committees of the Company 
were carried through on the basis of majority. We were informed that there were no dissenting 
views by any members of Board / Committee in the meetings held during the year under review 
that were required to be captured and recorded as part of minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines subject to the following observations / qualifications, 
reservations or adverse remarks if any. 
 
We further report that there were following major instances happened during the year under 
review: 
 
a. Ms. Ziral Pankajkumar Soni (Membership No – 44792) resigned as Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 10.04.2019 
 

b. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 25.04.2019 allotted 51,30,000 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a issue price of Rs. 16/- per share to Promoter Group upon 
conversion of warrants. 
 

c. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 02.05.2019 allotted 76,50,000 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a issue price of Rs. 16/- per share to Promoter Group upon 
conversion of warrants. 
 

d. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 02.05.2019 appointed M/s. 
Arpan Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No. 
125049W, Peer Review Certificate No. 011646) as the Statutory Auditor of the company to 
fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of existing Statutory Auditors M/s Dhiren 
Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No 114633W). 
 

e. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 30.05.2019 appointed Ms. 
Yesha Yatishbhai Shah as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 
01.06.2019. 
 

f. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 30.05.2019 approved shifting 
of Registered Office of the company within same city, from Unit-1, Club Babylon, Survey No. 
223/5, S P Ring Road, Nr. Bhadaj Circle, at Bhadaj, Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380060 to 410, JBR 
Arcade, science city road, sola, Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380060. 
 

g. The members of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28.06.2019 
appointed M/s. Arpan Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm 
Registration No. 125049W, Peer Review Certificate No. 011646) as the Statutory Auditor of 
the company to hold the office upto conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

h. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 19.08.2019 approved appointment of M/s D 
K Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad as internal auditor of the Company for 
FY 2019-20. 
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i. The members of the Company passed Special Resolution approving migration of equity 

shares of the company from emerge platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited to 
main board of National Stock Exchange of India Limited, on 24.08.2019 through postal ballot. 
 

j. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 26.09.2019 appointed 
M/s. Arpan Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No. 
125049W, Peer Review Certificate No. 011646) as the Statutory Auditor of the company to 
hold office until the conclusion of 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on FY 
2023-2024(for a term of 5 years). 
 

k. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 26.09.2019 approved 
limits of granting loans, making investments, providing guarantee or security u/s 185 and 
186 of Companies Act, 2013 upto an aggregate sum of INR 100 Crores. 
 

l. The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 26.09.2019 approved 
increase in overall limit of Managerial Remuneration u/s 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

m. Mr. Chetankumar Modi was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 
11.09.2019 in place of resignation of Mr. Kirtar Munshi who resigned as Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company w.e.f. 09.09.2019. 

 
There were no other instances of: 

 
a) Public issue / Right issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity etc. 
b) Redemption / Buy – Back of Securities. 
c) Merger / amalgamation / Reconstruction etc. 
d) Foreign Technical Collaboration. 

 
      FOR YASH MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
      COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
       
      YASH MEHTA 
      PROPRIETOR  
Date : 31.08.2020                   ACS : 45267 
Place : Ahmedabad                 COP : 16535 
                                                                                  UDIN: A045267B000636321 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms 
an integral part of this report. 
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“ANNEXURE A” 
 
To,  
The Members,  
ART NIRMAN LIMITED  
CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 

 410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road, Sola,  

Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380060 India.  

 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

responsible assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we follow provide a responsible basis 
for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the company. 
 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification 
of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

 
      FOR YASH MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
      COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
       
      YASH MEHTA 
      PROPRIETOR  
Date : 31.08.2020      ACS : 45267 
Place : Ahmedabad    COP : 16535 
                                                     UDIN: A045267B000636321 
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Annexure D 
to the Director’s Report 

 
[Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014] 

 
I) Disclosure under provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given herein below:  
 

Sr. 

No. 
Name and Designation 

Ratio of 

Remuneration of 

Director to Median 

Remuneration of 

Employee 

% Increase in 

remuneration for 

FY 2019 20 

Sub Clause (i) of Rule 

5(1)  

Sub Clause (ii) of 

Rule 5(1) 

1 Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker 

Managing Director * 

4.88:1 No increase 

2 Dharmisthaben Ashookumar Thakkar 

Director ** 

NIL NIL 

3 Piyushkumar Chandrakantbhai Thakkar 3.41:1 

 

No increase 

4 Kirtar Satubhai Munshi  

Chief Financial officer*** 

No increase 

5 Chetankumar Rasiklal Modi 

Chief Financial officer*** 

100% 

6 Yesha Yatishbhai Shah 

Company Secretary**** 

100% 

 
* Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker, Managing Director of the Company was paid same 
remuneration during the FY 2019-20.  
 
** Mrs. Dharmishtha Ashokkumar Thakkar, Director of the company was not paid any 
remuneration during the FY 2019-20. Hence no disclosure is required w. r. t. increase in 
remuneration of the Company.  
 
*** Kirtar Satubhai Munshi resigned from the post of CFO w. e. f. 9th September, 2019 and Mr. 
Chetankumar Rasiklal Modi appointed as CFO of the company w. e. f. 11th September,2019. 
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****Ms. Yesha Yatishbhai Shah appointed as company secretary of the company w.e.f. 1st June, 
2019. 
 

II) Sub Clause (iii) of Rule 5(1): The median remuneration of employee in the financial year 
2019-20 was INR 2,72,400/- (INR 2,46,000/- in financial year 2018-19). There was no 
increase/ decrease in median remuneration of employee. Median of last year and current 
year if different because of increase in the numbers of employee in 2019-20. 

III) Sub Clause (iv) of Rule 5(1): There are 39 employees on the pay roll of the Company other 
than Directors on the Board of Company.  

IV) Sub Clause (viii) of Rule 5(1): During the FY 201920, average salary of the Company has 
been increased by 2.65%.  

V) Sub Clause (xii) of Rule 5(1): it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

VI) Sub Clause (i) to (iii) of Rule 5(2): Names of top ten employees of the Company and their 
relevant details as required to be disclosed under rule 5(3) are as under: 

 
Sr. 
No 

Name of Employees on 
payroll of Company and 
Designation 

Remuneration paid 
during the year                           
(INR in Lakhs) 

Shareholding 
in the 
Company 

Relation with 
Director/ KMP 

1 Gopal Jaiswal 
Sr. site Engineer 

8.88 NIL No 

2 Hitesh Nagpal 
Supervisor 

8.64 NIL No 

3 Shiv Narayan Rajendra 
Sr. MEP Engineer 

8.40 NIL No 

4 Upendra Sharma 
Sr. Site Engineer 

8.16 NIL No 

5 Ankit Baviskar 
Sr. Site Engineer 

6.48  NIL No 

6 ShilpabenM. Thakkar 
Sales Manager 

4.80 NIL No 

6 Pritiben C. Thakkar 
Sales Manager 

4.80 NIL No 

7 Chetankumar Modi 
CFO 

4.32 NIL No 

8 Kamlesh Solanki 
Interior Designer 

4.22 NIL No 

9 Sunil Chaturvedi 
Accountant 

3.60 NIL No 

10 Bindesh Tripathi 
HR & Purchase Incharge 

3.36 NIL No 
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Annexure E 
Management Discussion And Analysis 

 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW: 
 
In terms of GDP, Indian economy is the 5th largest economy in the world. The economy faced 
multiple headwinds and grew by 4.2% in Financial Year 2019-20, registering a slower 
growth as compared to previous year. The decline was primarily driven by mix of both 
internal as well as external factors such as synchronized global slowdown, plummeting 
domestic automobile sales, flattening of core sector growth and declining investment in 
construction and infrastructure sector. Other factors such as credit crisis due to drying up 
of lending from non-banking financial institutions throughout CY 2019, deceleration in 
consumption and as well as a contraction in exports, with reduced demand for imports also 
contributed to the slow growth. 
 
Despite the slowdown, the country has improved its ranking in World Bank’s ‘Doing 
Business’ and stood at 63rd position in CY 2019 as compared to 142nd position in CY 2014. 
This improvement was backed by reforms introduced by the Government of India such as 
corporate tax rate cuts, ease in manufacturing policies to boost the Make in India campaign, 
infusion of H 70,000 crore in public sector banks, etc. With these initiatives, the PMI for the 
month of January 2020 rose to 55.3, taking it to an 
eight-year high. 
 
However, the recent outbreak of COVID-19, which led to a country wide lockdown to curtail 
the spread of the virus, has posed a altogether new challenge and has altered the outlook of 
the Indian economy. The economy is further expected to experience slowdown and is 
projected to grow by a modest 1.9% in FY 2020-21. Government of India and the RBI are 
nevertheless continuously working in tandem to revive the economy to address the demand 
side to revive the economy and all efforts are being made to enhance rural incomes. Fiscal 
as well as monetary measures have been introduced and are expected to decelerate this 
slowdown and will help the economy grow in at rebound within a short period of time. 
Looking ahead, the Indian economy is expected to touch 7.4%2 growth rate by FY 2021-22. 
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE:  
 
As per survey report, Real Estate Sector in India holds following records: 
 

 Real Estate stock in India was expected to reach 3.7 million square feet (msf) in 2019, with 
addition of 200 msf during the year. 
 

 Emergence of nuclear families, rapid urbanisation and rising household income are likely 
to remain the key drivers for growth in all spheres of real estate, including residential, 
commercial, and retail. Rapid urbanisation in the country is pushing the growth of real 
estate. More than 70 per cent of India’s GDP will be contributed by urban areas by 2020. 

 

 Real estate attracted around Rs 43,780 crore (US$ 6.26 billion) in investment in 2019.  

 

 The retail segment in Indian realty attracted PE (Private Equity) investment of around US$ 
1 billion in 2019. Real estate attracted around US$ 14 billion from foreign PE between 2015 
and Q32019. 
 

 Institutional investment into Indian real estate sector stood at US$ 712 million during the 
quarter ended March 2020.  
 

 Housing sales reached 2.61 lakh units in 2019 across seven major cities. 
 

 The Government of India has been supportive towards the real estate sector. In August 

2015, the Union Cabinet approved 100 Smart City Projects in India. The Government has 

also raised FDI (Foreign Direct Investment) limits for townships and settlements 
development projects to 100 per cent. Real estate projects within Special Economic Zones 
(SEZ) are also permitted for 100 per cent FDI. Export from SEZs reached Rs 7.01 lakh crore 
(US$ 100.30 billion) in FY19 and grew by almost 14.5 per cent to Rs 3.82 lakh crore (US$ 
54.66 billion) in H1FY20. 
 

 Government of India’s Housing for All initiative is expected to bring US$ 1.3 trillion 
investment in the housing sector by 2025. As of December 2019, under Pradhan Mantri 
Awas Yojana (Urban) [PMAY (U)], 1.12 crore houses were sanctioned in urban areas, with 

a potential to create 1.20 crore jobs. The scheme is expected to push affordable housing 
and construction in the country and give a boost to the real estate sector. The Government 

has also released draft guidelines for investment by Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 
in non-residential segment. 
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OPPORTUNITY AND THREATS: 
 
 Opportunity: 
 

a) Policy support: 
 
- The government has allowed FDI of upto 100 % for townships and settlements 

development projects. 
 
- Under the Housing for all scheme, 60 million houses will be built, 40 million of these 

in rural areas and 20 million in urban areas, by 2022. 
 

b) Robust Demand:  
 
- Demand for residential properties has surged due to increased urbanisation and 

rising household income. India is among the top 10 price appreciating housing 
markets internationally. 
 

c) Attractive Opportunities:  
 
- Growing requirement of space from sectors such as education and health cares, e 

commerce and logistics. 
- Co-living market size across India’s top 30 cities is expected to grow more than double 

to reach US$ 13.92 billion by 2025 from current size of US$ 6.67 billion. 
 

d) Increasing Investments: 
 
- Indian real estate attracted over US$ 6.06 billion in investment in 2019. 
- In 2019, Indian real estate sector attracted more than US$ 5 billion in private equity 

inflow, out of which around 66 % or US$ 3.3 billion was invested in commercial real 
estate.    

 
e) Metro Cities have driving demand for Commercial Space.  

 
f) Growth in Tourism, Urbanization, Hospitality, Education, easy financing etc. provides 

and is likely to provide tremendous opportunities in the years to come.  
 

 Threats: 
 
In the course of its business the Company is exposed to stiff competition from other 
developers in the market. In addition, it is exposed to certain market related risks, such as 
increase in interest rates and foreign currency rates, customer risks and changes in the 
government policies, global wars, competition from Asian and global buyers.  
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SEGMENT / PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE: 

 
Company operates into single segment of construction of various Residential and 
Commercial schemes.  
 

 Company has completed the construction work of “Shree Vishnudhara Gardens” near 
Gota at Ahmedabad. Company got BU for the project. Now company will start to give 
possession for the sold flats and shops. 
 

 Company has also got works contract from Art Club Private Limited for Club Babylon, by 
this contract company will enter in new division of construction segment apart from 
houses and shops. However the club is not owned by the company but experience of club 
construction will provide immense future opportunity for the company and also will add 
noted recognition to the company in industry.  

 

 The company will in FY 2020-21 also planning to launch new commercial project.   
 
OUTLOOK: 
 

 Residential Real Estate: 
a) Fragmented market with few large players. 
b) Demand of over 3 million units in the seven major cities. 
c) Demand for premium products to continue, albeit at a slower pace. 
d) Demand for Ultra Low Cost (ULC) Housing ‘Housing for all’ to enhance at very high 

growth rate. 
 

 Commercial Real Estate: 
a) Few players with presence across India. 
b) Operating model shifting from sales to lease and maintenance. 
c) Rentals have started appreciating during the current FY. 
d) IT/ITES and BFSI would continue to account for 60-70% of office demand. 

  
 Retail Real Estate: 

a) Fragmented market with few large players. 
b) More collaborative models such as revenue sharing to emerge in the sector. 
c) Demand for retail spaces on high streets increasing. 
d) With FDI in retail more international retailers to venture into India, which would 

result high demand and increased rentals in retail real estate. 
e) Retailers would continue to expand beyond Tier I into Tier II and III cities and large 

number of malls slated to become operational. 
 

 Hospitality Real Estate: 
a) A competitive market with major players. 
b) NCR and Mumbai by far the biggest hospitality markets in India due to economic 

growth and business meets. 

60



c) Government initiative to promote tourism in Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities generating 
demands. 

 
RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
The Real estate market is inherently a cyclical market and is affected by macroeconomic 
conditions, changes in applicable government schemes, project cost, consumer financing 
and liquidity etc. Your Company has taken sufficient care to maintain quality of the 
construction which differentiates company products from market. However any economic 
downturn in the years to come, may adversely impact the business.  
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements. The Board has inter alia reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal financial controls relating to its financial statements.  

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH REFERENCE TO OPERATIONAL 
PERFORMANCE: 

  
Your Company has achieved total net sales of INR 6181.85 lakhs and achieved Net Profit 
After Tax (NP) of INR 81.66 Lakhs. The aggregate revenue of the Company decreased 
compared to PY 2018 19.  
 
The Directors of the Company are hopeful to gain good returns in the years to come from 
it’s under construction scheme “Shree Vishnudhara Gardens” 2 & 3 BHK Apartments, 
showrooms, Shops and offices, Residential and Commercial scheme at Gota, Ahmedabad.  

 
 MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS          

FRONT ETC 
 
 There is no major development in the Human Resources Employed by the Company. 
  
 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 
During the year, the Company has not adopted any accounting treatment which different 
from that prescribed in an Accounting Standards. 
 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED 
TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, 
ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS THEREFOR, INCLUDING: 
 

Particular FY 
ended 
on 2020 

FY ended 
on 2019 

changes 
betwwen 
current & past 
FY 

Explanation if 
changes more than 
25 % 

     
Debtors /Turnover 0.33 1.29 -0.74 - 
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Inventory 
/Turnover 

1.29 5.96 -0.78 - 

Interest Coverage 
Ratio(EBIT/Int 
Exp) 

1.19 1.23 -0.03 - 

Current 
Ratio(Current 
Assets/current 
Liability) 

2.00 1.53 -0.31 - 

Debt Equity 
Ratio(total 
Liab/total equity) 

2.07 4.36 -0.53 - 

Operating Profit 
Margin 
(%)(operating 
profit(EBIT)/sales) 

0.12 52.07 -0.99 - 

Net Profit Margin 
(%)(net 
profit/sales) 

0.01 6.97 -0.99 - 
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UDIN: 20116736AAAACF8252 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ART NIRMAN LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ART NIRMAN LIMITED.(“the 
company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2020, and profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
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detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting     estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
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significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 
As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
  
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 
 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the company 
as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020, from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the           Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in   “Annexure – B”. 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:  

 
 

i. The company does have pending litigation relating to the Service Tax 
Liability pursuant to the raid by DG(Intelligence) of GST and the 
investigation has not yet been concluded. The company is submitting 
requisite explanation from time to time to the department and hence no 
effect has been given in the financials being reported herewith as effects of 
the outcome could not be ascertained under AS 29.  

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

FOR ARPAN SHAH & ASSOCIATES   
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 125049W 
 
 

CA Arpan shah             
Proprietor   

M. No:116736 
Ahmedabad, July 20, 2020   
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on other Legal & Regulatory 
Requirement’ section of our report to the Members of Art Nirman Limited of even date) 
  

i. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets: 
 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative  details and situation of fixed assets. 
 

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its business.  Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

 
 

(c)   According to the information and explanation given to us, the records examined 
by us and based on the examination of the documents provided to us, we report 
that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land & buildings 
which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet 
date. 

 
ii. (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at 

reasonable intervals during the year.  
(b)     The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared 
to books records, which has been properly dealt with in the books of account, were not 
material. 
 

iii. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 
  

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 In respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees 
and security, as applicable. 
  

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 
2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.  
 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out 
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by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the 
Company.  
 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  
 
(a)  The company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory 
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities in India except GST and TDS which have been complied 
with delays.  

(b)    There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in 
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on 
when they become       payable.  
(c)      There were no dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Good and Service Tax and 

Customs Duty which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2020 on account of 
any dispute except an demand of Income tax of Rs. 480390/- ( Rs. 281380/- + 
Rs. 199010/- interest) of FY 2013-14 for which the appeal is pending before 
CIT(A).  

 
viii. The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 

institution/bank/government and has not issued any debentures. 
 

ix. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the company has utilized the money raised by way of initial 
public offer/further public offer, including debt instruments, and term Loans during 
the year have been applied to the purpose for which they were raised. 
  

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 
xi. Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given 

by the management, managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 
read with schedule V to the Companies Act. 

 
xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore reporting under clause 3(xii) of 

the order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 & 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment / private 
placement of equity share during the year.  
 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

68



 
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 
 

FOR ARPAN SHAH & ASSOCIATES   
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 125049W 
 
 
 

CA Arpan shah             
Proprietor   

Ahmedabad, July 20, 2020        Membership No.: 116736 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ART NIRMAN 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting of the Company.  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Opinion  
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.  
 
  

FOR ARPAN SHAH & ASSOCIATES   
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 125049W 
 
 
 

CA Arpan shah             
Proprietor   

Ahmedabad, July 20, 2020        Membership No.: 116736 
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(Rs. In Lakh )
Notes As at 31/03/2020 As at 31/03/2019 

A     EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1     Shareholders’ funds

    (a)    Equity Share Capital 2 2495.60 1217.60
    (b)    Reserves and Surplus 3 2002.36 1153.90
    (c)    Money received against share warrants 4 0.00 511.20

Total Equity (1) 4497.96 2882.70
2     Non-Current Liabilities

    (a)    Long-term borrowings 5 1906.71 2330.25
    (b)    Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 28.18 25.09
    (c)    Other Long term liabilities 7 912.12 740.12

Total Non-Current Liabilities (2) 2847.00 3095.46
3     Current Liabilities

    (a)    Short-term borrowings 8 9.78 9.78
    (b)    Trade payables 9
         (A)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
                small enterprises;and 17.94 36.65

         (B)   total outstanding dues of creditors other than                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
micro enterprises and small enterprises 922.18 1332.30

    (c)    Other current liabilities 10 5478.77 8035.74
    (d)    Short-term provisions 11 37.74 46.82

Total Current Liabilities (3) 6466.39 9461.29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3) 13811.35 15439.45

B     Assets
4     Non-current assets

    (a)    Property, Plant and Equipment
            (i)     Tangible assets 12 786.51 860.48
            (ii)    Intangible assets 0.54 1.20
    (b)    Non-current investments 13 32.07 30.00
    (c)    Long term loans and advances 14 41.73 31.49

Total Non-Current Assets (4) 860.85 923.17
5     Current assets

    (a)    Inventories 15 9927.18 11253.12
    (b)    Trade receivables 16 2089.61 2434.57
    (c)    Cash and cash equivalents 17 164.57 214.60
    (d)    Short-term loans and advances 18 368.82 306.35
    (e)    Other current assets 19 400.32 307.63

Total Current Assets (5) 12950.51 14516.28
TOTAL ASSETS (4+5) 13811.35 15439.45

The accompanying notes forming an integral part of the 
financial statements 1

For, Arpan Shah & Associates                                          
Chartered Accountants
FRN No: 125049W

Ashokkumar Thakker Piyushkumar Thakkar
CA Arpan Shah Chairman & MD Executive Director
Proprietor (DIN: 02842849) (DIN: 07555460)
Membership No: 116736
UDIN:20116736AAAACF8252
Place: Ahmedabad Chetan Kumar Modi Yesha Shah
Date:  20.07.2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Particulars

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

 For and on behalf of the Board of ART 
NIRMAN LIMITED 
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31/03/2020 31/03/2019
    Revenue from Operations 20 6212.49 1889.34
    Other Income 21 10.50 62.02

Total Revenue(1+2) 6222.98 1951.36
    Expenses
    Cost of Materials Consumed 22 1941.50 2700.52
    Changes in Inventories 23 1325.94 (4275.50)
    Depreciation and Amortization Expense 12 75.15 76.04
    Employee Benefits Expense 24 173.32 174.91
    Finance Costs 25 647.00 798.56
    Other Expenses 26 1936.32 2291.63

Total Expenses 6099.23 1766.16

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items
and tax (3 - 4) 123.76 185.20
Exceptional items 0.00 0.00
Profit before extraordinary items and tax (5-6) 123.76 185.20
Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before tax(7-8) 123.76 185.20
    Tax Expense:
    (1)    Current tax
                - For the Current Year 37.75 46.82
                - For earlier years 1.26 0.90
    (2)    Deferred tax liabilities / (asset) 3.09 5.74

Total Tax Expense 42.09 53.46
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing 
operations (9-10) 81.66 131.74
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS N.A. N.A.
    Earning Per Share(of Rs 10/- each)
    (1)    Basic 0.34 1.28
    (2)    Diluted 0.34 0.74
The accompanying notes forming an integral 
part of the financial statements 1

For, Arpan Shah & Associates                            
Chartered Accountants
FRN No: 125049W

Ashokkumar Thakker Piyushkumar Thakkar
CA Arpan Shah Chairman & MD Executive Director
Proprietor (DIN: 02842849) (DIN: 07555460)
Membership No: 116736
UDIN:20116736AAAACF8252
Place: Ahmedabad Chetan Kumar Modi Yesha Shah
Date:  20.07.2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

 For and on behalf of the Board of ART 
NIRMAN LIMITED 

 (Rs. In Lakh except Per Share Data) 
NotesParticulars

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 For the year ended     
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(Rs. In Lakh )
Particulars For The Year Ended 

31st March, 2020
For The Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 123.76 185.20
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 75.15 76.04
Finance Costs 647.00 798.56
Interest Income (9.50) (32.03)
Rent Income (27.10) (27.00)
Other Income 0.00 (29.86)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 809.31 970.91
Adjusted For:
Trade & Other Receivables 177.49 (94.28)
Inventories 1325.94 (4275.50)
Trade & Other Payables (2994.90) 5791.06
Cash Generated from Operations (682.16) 2392.20
Direct Tax (paid)/ refund (39.01) (47.72)
Net Cash from/ (Used in) Operating Activities                                            A (721.17) 2344.48
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (0.52) (13.53)
Interest Income 9.50 32.03
Rent Income 27.10 27.00
Net Cash Flow from/ (Used in) Investing Activities                                     B 36.08 45.49
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (251.55) (2790.91)
Issue of Shares (incl. share premium) 1533.60 731.52
Finance Costs (647.00) (798.56)
money received against Share Warrants 0.00 511.20
Net Cash Flow from/ (Used in) Financing Activities                                    C 635.06 (2346.75)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)                 D (50.03) 43.22
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year                               E  214.60 171.39
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the Year (D+E) 164.57 214.60

For, Arpan Shah & Associates                                                              Chartered 
Accountants
FRN No: 125049W

Ashokkumar Thakker Piyushkumar Thakkar
CA Arpan Shah Chairman & MD Executive Director
Proprietor (DIN: 02842849) (DIN: 07555460)
Membership No: 116736
UDIN:20116736AAAACF8252
Place: Ahmedabad Chetan Kumar Modi Yesha Shah
Date:  20.07.2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of ART NIRMAN 
LIMITED
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(Rs. In Lakh except Shares related data)
2 Share Capital

Particulars
As at               
March 31, 2020 No 
of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2020   
Amount in Rs.

As at               
March 31, 2019 No 
of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2019   
Amount in Rs.

    (a)  Authorised
          Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 25000000 2500.00 25000000 2500.00
    (b)  Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
          Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 24956000 2495.60 12176000 1217.60
    Total 24956000 2495.60 12176000 1217.60

Particulars
As at               
March 31, 2020   
No of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2020   
Amount in Rs.

As at               
March 31, 2019   
No of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2019   
Amount in Rs.

Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the period 12176000 1217.60 7604000 760.40
Add : Warrants converted into shares during the year 12780000 1278.00 4572000 457.20
Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 24956000 2495.6 12176000 1217.6

Particulars
As at               
March 31, 2020   
No of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2020   % 
of holding

As at               
March 31, 2019   
No of Shares

As at               
March 31, 2019   % 
of holding

Ashokkumar R Thakker 15764995 63.17% 5594995 45.95%
Ajaykumar Jamnalal Pujara 918000 3.68% 918000 7.54%

(c) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Ordinary Shares in the Company

(a) Reconciliation of number of ordinary shares outstanding

-   The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
     to one vote per share.
-   The final dividend declared, if any, is subject to the approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting.
-   In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of
    the Company In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(b)  Terms / rights attached to equity shares :

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements
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(Rs. In Lakh)
3 Reserves & Surplus

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Securities Premium

       Balance as at the beginning of the year 814.92 540.60

       Addition during the year 766.80 274.32

1581.72 814.92

  Surplus

       Balance as at the beginning of the year 338.98 199.11

       Profit for the year 81.66 131.74

       Other Reasons(Please refer FA schedule note) -                                  8.13

420.64 338.98

2002.36 1153.90

4 Money received against share warrants

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Money received against share warrants -                                  511.20

-                                  511.20

5 Long Term Borrowings

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Secured Loans

        Rupee Term Loan

        From Banks -                                  -                                  

        From NBFCs 1595.93 1690.40

  Unsecured Loans

        From Directors 310.77 639.85

1906.71 2330.25

Note: 

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

Note:

1,27,80,000 Convertible Warrants of Rs.  16/-  Each convertible into equivalent no of Equity Shares for consideration in cash/other than 

cash, on upfront payment of 25% of the amount, alloted on preferential basis in Board Meeting dated 01.09.2018  after approval of 

shareholders in EGM held on 30.05.2018. The same convertible warrnts have been converted into shares duting this financial year 2019-

20.

Rupee Term Loan of Rs.1595.93 lakh is secured against registered mortgage of all right, title and interest of the borrower in the project 

titled "Vishnudhara Gardens" along with Project Land admeasuring about 13597 sq. mtrs. of Final Plot No. 52 part of Town Planning 

Scheme No. 34 at Mouje jagatpur, Taluka Ghatlodia in ahmedabad-8(Sola), and Registered mortgage of land admeasuring about 1730 sq. 

mtrs. of survey no. 484 A+B ad land admeasuring about 2990 sq. mtrs. of Revenue Survey No. 484(part) aggregating to 4720 sq. mtrs. at 

Mouje Wadaj, Taluka Sabarmati  in Ahmedabad-2 (Wadaj), together with exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all the receivables 

incl. sold, unsold, insurance receipts as well as development and other charges from units and any cashflow from the Project. Repayment 

of loan of Rs. 1595.93 lakh is repayable through escrow account and in equitable monthly installment over the period of Loan.
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(Rs. In Lakh)

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

6 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Deferred Tax Liabilities 28.18 25.09

        Tax impact due to Timing difference of depreciation on PPE

28.18 25.09

7 Other Non-Current Liability

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Maintainence Deposits from Customers 265.95 93.95

  Security Deposit

       From Related Party 646.17 646.17

912.12 740.12

8 Short Term Borrowings

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Unsecured

       Loan Repayable on Demand

               Other Body Corporates 9.78 9.78

9.78 9.78

9 Trade Payables

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Micro Small and Medium Enterprise 17.94 36.65

  Others 922.18 1332.30

940.11 1368.96

Note:

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

i)     The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the

       end of the year 17.94 36.65
ii)    The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the

       end of the year - -

iii)   The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 along with the            

amount of payment made to supplier beyond the appointment                

day during the year 2010-11 - -
iv)   The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in            

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed          

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified                  

under this Act - -
v)    The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining                 

unpaid at the end of the year - -

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with 

the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises as at March 31, 2020 are as under
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(Rs. In Lakh)

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

10 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Secured Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 1459.27 2673.70

  Interest Accrued But Not Due 51.06 41.40

  Advance received for works contract 70.00

  Other Payables

        Booking Advances from Members 3827.96 5239.50

        Statutory Dues Payable 53.21 65.26

        Retention Money 8.73 5.72

        Others 8.54 10.16

5478.77 8035.74

11 Short Term Provision

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Provision for taxation 37.74 46.82

37.74 46.82

13 Non Current Investment

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  FD Investments 32.07 30.00

32.07 30.00

14 Long Term Loans And Advances

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Unsecured - Considered Good

        Capital Advances                                      -   -                                  

        Loans and Advances 17.23 16.28

        Security deposits 24.50 15.21

41.73 31.49

15 Inventories

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Finished Goods 30.18 30.18

  Construction Work-in-Progress 9897.00 11222.94

9927.18 11253.12
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(Rs. In Lakh)

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

16 Trade Receivables

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Unsecured-Considered Good

        More than six months 1800.42 640.37

        Others 289.19 1794.20

2089.61 2434.57

17 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Cash in hand 1.92 3.01

  Balance with banks

        in Current Account 69.82 165.36

        in FD Account 92.83 46.23

164.57 214.60

18 Short Term Loans & Advances

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Unsecured, considered good

        Advance given to Related parties 60.20 51.35

        Advance given to vendors 308.62 255.00

368.82 306.35

19 Other Current Assets

Particulars AS AT 31/03/2020 AS AT 31/03/2019

  Balances with government authorities 375.98 243.93

  Others

        Prepaid Expenses 3.70 4.34

        Other Receivables 20.64 59.35

400.32 307.63
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20 Revenue From Operations

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Sale of Real Estate Developments 5788.06 45.20

  Sale of Service 393.79 1817.14

6181.85 1862.34

  Other Operating Revenues

    Rent Income 27.10 27.00

    Other Income 3.54 -                           

30.64 27.00

6212.49 1889.34

21 Other Income

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Interest Received 9.50 32.03

  Sundry Balances Written off -                            29.86

  Excess provision no longer required written back 1.00 -                           

  Miscellaneous Income -                         0.14

10.50 62.02

22 Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Inventories at the beginning of the year -                            -                           

  Add: Purchases 1941.50 2700.52

  Less: Inventories at the end of the year -                            -                           

  Cost of Materials Consumed 1941.50 2700.52

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements
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Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

23 Changes In Inventories

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Inventories at the beginning of the year

        Finished Goods 30.18 61.61

        Construction Work-in-Progress 11222.94 6916.00

11253.12 6977.62

  Inventories at the end of the year

        Finished Goods 30.18 30.18

        Construction Work-in-Progress 9897.00 11222.94

9927.18 11253.12

  Changes In Inventories 1325.94 (4275.50)

24 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 162.67 166.12

  Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2.25 2.80

  Staff Welfare expenses 8.40 5.99

173.32 174.91

25 Finance Cost

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Interest Expense 617.60 792.32

  Other Borrowing Cost 29.40 6.23

647.00 798.56
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Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

26 Other Expenses

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

  Advertising and marketing expenses 19.63 25.82

  Brokerage expense 53.15 79.75

  Legal expenses 108.37 149.81

  Site related expenses 173.73 97.43

  Professional Fees 63.93 154.80

  Conveyance and travelling expenses 34.42 19.02

  Statutory Payments and Compliance related expenses 39.67 34.28

  Stationary expenses 3.60 4.48

  Communication expenses 1.48 1.58

  Payment to the Auditor(refer note 26a) 3.00 3.00

  Office expenses 10.90 0.86

  Donation expenses 1.66 0.17

  Insurance expenses 3.56 10.79

  Repair & Maintanance expenses 1.99 1.05

  Prior Period expenses 0.61 0.18

  Rent expenses 32.28 15.20

  Labour expenses 1368.11 1683.88

  Security expenses 15.67 9.13

  Miscellaneous. expenses 0.56 0.41

1936.32 2291.63

26A Payment to the auditor

Particulars

For The Period 

Ended on March 31, 

2020

For The Period 

Ended on March 

31, 2019

(a) As an auditor

Statutory Audit Fees 1.50 1.50

Internal Audit Fees 1.00 1.00

(b) For Taxation Matters

Tax Audit Fees 0.50 0.50

3.00 3.00
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Fixed Assets

TANGIBLE ASSETS
Buildings

457.04
-

                
-

                  
457.04

36.16
14.45

-
                     

-
              

50.62
406.43

420.88
Plant & Machinery 

207.94
-

                
-

                  
207.94

42.86
14.99

-
                     

-
              

57.85
150.09

165.08
Furniture & Fixture

170.27
-

                  
170.27

52.17
19.83

-
                     

-
              

72.01
98.26

118.10
Electrical Installations & 
Equipments

141.83
-

                
-

                  
141.83

31.86
13.46

-
                     

-
              

45.31
96.52

109.97
Office Equipments

52.80
0.52

-
                  

53.31
26.95

8.38
-

                     
-

              
35.32

17.99
25.85

Vehicles
28.75

-
                  

28.75
8.15

3.38
-

                     
-

              
11.53

17.22
20.60

1058.63
0.52

              
-

                  
1059.15

198.15
74.48

        
-

                     
-

              
272.64

786.51
860.48

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software 

10.66
-

                
-

                  
10.66

9.45
0.67

-
                     

-
              

10.12
0.54

1.20
TOTAL

1069.29
0.52

              
-

                  
1069.81

207.61
75.15

        
-

                     
-

              
282.76

787.05
861.68

Previous Year
1055.76

13.53
-

                  
1069.29

139.69
76.04

8.13
-                    

-
              

207.61
861.68

916.06

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

Particulars
 GROSS BLOCK 

 DEPRECIATION FUND 
 NET BLOCK 
OF ASSET AS 

ON 
31/03/2020 

 NET BLOCK 
OF ASSET AS 

ON 
31/03/2019 

 OPENING 
BLOCK 

*Note: This adjustment is due to excess/(short) depreciation charged till March 31, 2018 and the same has been directly appropriated to reserve & surplus without routing it to 
the P & L account.

 ADJUSTMENT* 
 SALES 

 CLOSING  
BALANCE 

 ADDITION 
 DISPOSALS 

 CLOSING 
BLOCK 

 OPENING 
BALANCE  ADDITION 
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Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements 

Note No. 1 
Significant Accounting Policies:  
 

1. Corporate Information: 

ART NIRMAN LIMITED (“the Company”) having CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 
was incorporated on February 19, 2011 as a Private Limited company under the 
Companies Act, 1956, with Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The Company was 
later on converted into a Public Company w.e.f. September 2, 2016 and has its 
registered office at 410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road, Sola Ahmedabad 380060, 
Gujarat, India. The Company’s equity shares are listed on The National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Emerge Platform. The Company is engaged in the 
business of real estate development and allied activities. 

 
2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements: 

 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared and presented under 

the historical cost convention and on the accrual basis in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. GAAP comprises Accounting 

Standards notified by the Central Government of India under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, other pronouncements of Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and guidelines issued by Securities 

and Exchange Board of India. 

 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR”) and all values are 

rounded to the nearest INR Lakh, except when otherwise indicated. 

 

3. Use of Estimates and judgements: 

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with Generally 

Accepted Accounting principles require management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and 

disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and the 

reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results may 

differ from those estimates. Difference between the actual results and the estimates 

are recognised in the year in which the results become known/ materialise. 

4. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation and amortisation: 

 

(i)  Recognition and initial measurement 

 

Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / 

amortization and impairment losses, if any.  
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Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable / allocable cost of bringing 

the asset to its working condition for its intended use. The cost also includes direct 

cost and other related incidental expenses. Revenue earned, if any, during trial run 

of assets is adjusted against cost of the assets. Cost also includes the cost of 

replacing part of the plant and equipments.  

 

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of tangible 

assets, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are 

also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be 

put to use.  
 

When significant components of property and equipments are required to be 
replaced at intervals, recognition is made for such replacement of components as 
individual assets with specific useful life and depreciation, if these components are 
initially recognised as separate asset. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 
 

(ii)  Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) 

 

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are put to use, on straight line 

basis as per the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted 

for cost, less its estimated residual value. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate. 

 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are 

measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when 

the asset is derecognised. 

 

(iii)  De-recognition 

 

PPE are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from 

their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 

of de-recognition. 
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5. Intangible assets 

 

(i)  Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost comprises the acquisition price, development cost and any 
attributable / allocable incidental cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use. 
 
(ii)  Subsequent measurement (Amortisation) 
 
All intangible assets with its useful life are amortised on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful life. 
 
The carrying amount of intangible asset is reviewed at each financial year end for 
impairment based on internal /external factors. An impairment loss is recognised 
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. 
 
Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
 

6. Inventory 

 

Inventories comprising of completed units are valued at lower of cost or net 

realisable value and Inventories comprising of construction work-in-progress are 

valued at cost. Construction work-in-progress includes cost of land, premium for 

development rights, construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental 

to the projects undertaken by the Group. 

 

7. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
(excluding retirement benefits) are discounted to their present value and are 
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates. 
 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
for: 
 

i) possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly 
within the control of the Group; or 
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ii) present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

 

8. Leases 

 
Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are 
capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the 
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease under which the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership are not transferred to lessee is classified as operating lease. 
Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight 
line basis in net profit in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term. 
 

9. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of 
qualifying assets or for long - term project development are capitalised as part of 
their costs. 
 
Borrowing costs are considered as part of the asset cost when the activities that are 
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are in progress. 
 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense, in the 
period in which they are incurred. 
 

10. Segment Reporting 

 
The Company has only one segment i.e “Real Estate". Hence there are no reportable 
segments    under AS-17. During the year under Report, the company has carried 
out all the business operations in |ndia. The conditions prevailing in India being 
uniform, no separate geographic disclosure are considered necessary Hence 
segment reporting is not required. 

 
11. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the financial statement comprise cash at banks and on 
hand, demand deposit and short-term deposits, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short term deposits, as defined above. 
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12. Employee benefits 

 

i) Short term employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
ii) Defined contribution plans 
 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans such as Provident 
Fund and Employee State Insurance Corporations are expensed as the related 
service is provided. 
 
iii) Defined Benefit Plans 
 
The liability for the Gratuity is debited to the Profit & Loss Account is charged as 
and when the liability is crystalized and paid and to that extent AS-15 is deviated. 
However its effect on financial statements is not material. 
 

13. Revenue Recognition 

The revenue from the project related to real estate developments is recognized 
on the basis of conveyance deed executed with the members of the scheme and 
possession given to the members, on a year to year basis in pursuance of 
Accounting Standard – 9 (AS-9) and Guidance Note on Real Estate Developers 
(Revised), 2012, issued by ICAI. 
 
The revenue from the Works Contract related projects is recognized as per the 
terms and conditions of the “Works Contract Agreement” and accordingly 
periodic invoices are raised. 
 
Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account 
outstanding balance and rate of interest agreed upon with the parties. 
 

14. Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.  
 

i) Current tax 
 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable 
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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ii) Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and 
deductible temporary differences to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset 
can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of 
future taxable profits improves. 
 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be used. 
 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to 
temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities 
 
iii) Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) 

 
MAT credit is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax during 
specified period. MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written 
down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. 
 
 

15. Earnings per Share 

 

i) Basic Earnings Per Share 
 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period.                                                                                                                      

 

March  
31, 2020 

 March 
31, 2019  

   Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic) 
                                                                                   (Rs. In  lakh)  81.66 131.74 
Profit for the year, attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the  Company 

81.66 131.74 
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Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)   
 Weighted average number of equity shares at the beginning of 

the year 12176000 7604000 
Add: Weighted average number of warrants converted into 
equity shares during the year 11715000 2667000 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the 
end of the year 23891000 10271000 

 
  

 Basic Earnings Per Share  0.34 1.28 
 
ii) Diluted Earnings Per Share 

 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by taking into account weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and the weighted 
average number of equity shares which would be issued on conversion of all the 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

March 31, 
2019 

 March 
31, 2019  

   Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted) 
(Rs. In  lakh)  81.66  131.74 
Profit for the year, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the            
Company 

81.66 131.74 

 
    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)     
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (basic) 23891000 10271000 
Add: Weighted average effect of potential equity shares - 7455000 

 23891000 17726000 

     
Diluted Earnings Per Share  0.34 0.74 

 

16. Related party Disclosures 

 

i) List of related parties: 
(a) Key Management Personnel and their relatives:  

- Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram Thakker   
- Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar Thakkar  
- Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar 
- Mr. Chetan Kumar Modi 
- Mrs. Yesha Shah 

 
(b) Entities where key management personnel have significant 

influence: 
- Art Club Pvt Ltd 
- DAT Hotels and Resorts Private Limited 
- Dhara Developers 
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ii) Related Party Transactions: 
 

For the Financial year ended 2019-20 
 

Name of the party 
Nature of 
Relation 

 Nature of 
Transaction  

Amount(Rs.In 
Lakhs) 

      
 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Director’s 
Remuneration  

12.00 

Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director 
 Director’s 

Remuneration  
8.05 

Mr. Chetan Kumar Modi 
Chief Financial 

officer(from Sep) 
 Salary  2.36 

Mr. Kirtar Satubhai Munshi 
Chief Financial 
officer(till Sep) 

 Salary  9.00 

Mrs. Yesha Shah 
Company 
secretary 

 Salary  2.23 

Art Club Limited 
Common  
Director 

 Works Contract  393.79 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Loan from 
Directors  

1124.66 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director 
 Loan from 
Directors  

23.50 

 Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director 
 Loan from 
Directors  

408.25 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Repayment of Loan 
to directors  

1446.90 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director 
 Repayment of Loan 

to directors  
23.50 

 Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director 
 Repayment of Loan 

to directors  
426.40 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Security Deposit  10.00 

Art Club Private Limited 
Common  
Director 

 Security Deposit  646.17 

Art Club Private Limited 
Common  
Director 

 Rent Income  27.00 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Rent Expense  22.37 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director  Rent Expense  8.55 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Interest Expense 
on Loan from 

Directors  
12.45 
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For the Financial year ended 2018-19 
 

Name of the party 
Nature of 
Relation 

 Nature of 
Transaction  

Amount(Rs.In 
Lakhs) 

      
 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Director’s 
Remuneration  

12.00 

Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director 
 Director’s 

Remuneration  
8.40 

Mr. Kirtar Satubhai Munshi 
Chief Financial 

officer 
 Salary  18.00 

Mrs. Ziral P. Soni 
Company 
secretary 

 Salary  1.20 

Art Club Limited 
Common 
Director 

 Works Contract  1817.14 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Loan from Directors  755.55 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director  Loan from Directors  10.00 

 Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director  Loan from Directors  789.35 
Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Repayment of Loan 
to directors  

1015.79 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director 
 Repayment of Loan 

to directors  
12.00 

 Mr. Piyushkumar C. Thakkar Director 
 Repayment of Loan 

to directors  
471.65 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Security Deposit  10.00 

Art Club Private Limited 
Common 
Director 

 Security Deposit  646.17 

Art Club Private Limited 
Common 
Director 

 Rent Income  27.00 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Rent Expense  5.59 

Mrs. Dharmisthaben Ashokkumar 
Thakkar 

Director  Rent Expense  8.55 

Mr. Ashokkumar Raghuram 
Thakker 

Managing 
Director 

 Interest Expense on 
Loan from Directors  

33.94 
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17. The Director General of Goods & Services Tax Intelligence Zonal Unit, Ahmedabad, 

conducted search in the premises of the company on 12/10/2018 and impounded 

certain material. The investigation is not yet concluded and the company is 

submitting requisite explanation from time to time to the department and hence no 

effect has been given in the financials being reported herewith as effects of the 

outcome could not be ascertained under AS 29. 

 

18. The figures of the previous period/year have been regrouped/recast/reclassified 

wherever considered necessary to conform to the current year's presentation. 

 

 

 
For, Arpan Shah & Associates                                                              
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of  
ART  NIRMAN LIMITED                                                                                    

FRN No: 125049W 
  

   

 
 Ashokkumar Thakker   Piyushkumar Thakkar  

CA Arpan Shah  Chairman & MD Executive Director  
Proprietor  (DIN: 02842849)  (DIN: 07555460)  
Membership No: 116736 
UDIN: 20116736AAAACF8252   

 
  
 

  

PLACE: AHMEDABAD  Chetan Kumar Modi  Yesha Shah 
Date:  20.07.2020 Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary 
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Art Nirman Limited  

410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road,  

Sola, Ahmedabad – 380060,  

Gujarat, India  

Email id: cs@artnirman.com  

Website: www.artnirman.com  

CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 

 

09th Annual General Meeting – 30thSeptember 2020.  

ATTENDENCE SLIP 

This attendance slip duly filled in is to be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 

For Demat Shares: For Physical Shares: 

DP ID: Regd. Folio No. 

Client ID: Nos. of Shares held: 

 

Full Name of the Member attending: 

 

 ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of the proxy:  

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(To be filled in if proxy has been duly deposited with the Company) 

 

I, hereby record my presence at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held 

on Wednesday, 30th September 2020 at 10.30 a.m. at Club Babylon, S P Road, Nr. Science 

City Circle, Bhadaj, Ahmedabad-380060, Gujarat, India. 

 

_____________________________________________ 

(Members’ / Proxy’s signature) 

(To be signed at the time of handing over this slip) 

 

 

*Persons attending the Annual General Meeting are required to bring their Annual Report. 
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Art Nirman Limited  
410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road,  
Sola, Ahmedabad – 380060,  
Gujarat, India  
Email id: cs@artnirman.com  
Website: www.artnirman.com  
CIN: L45200GJ2011PLC064107 
 

9th Annual General Meeting – 30th September, 2020 

PROXY FORM  

[Pursuant to section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the 
Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]  
 

Name of the member (s): 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Registered address: 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

E-mail Id: ______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Folio No./ Client Id: 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

DP Id: _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

I/ We, being the member of _____________    Equity shares of Art Nirman Limited, hereby 

appoint: 

Name:  Email id:  

Address:  Signature:  

Or failing him/ her:  
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Name:  Email id:  

Address:  Signature:  

Or failing him/ her:  

Name:  Email id:  

Address:  Signature:  

 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 9th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Wednesday, 30th September 

2020 at 10.30 a.m. at Club Babylon, S P Road, Nr. Science City Circle, Bhadaj, Ahmedabad 

380060, Gujarat, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 

are indicated overleaf: 

Sr. No  Resolution Vote – Refer Note 4 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS For  Against  Abstain  

1  Adoption of the Financial Statements of 

the Company and reports of the 

Auditors and the Directors thereon.  

   

2 Re-appoint Mr. Piyushkumar Thakkar 

(DIN: 07555460) as director of the 

company who is liable for retire by 

rotation. 

   

 SPECIAL BUSINESS    

3 Re-appointment of Mr. Ashokkumar 

Thakker as a Managing Director. 

   

4 Re-appointment of Mr. Krunal Mistry as 
an Independent Director for further 
period of 5 years. 

   

5 Addition of Object Clause Number 2 by 
Alteration of Object Clause of 
Memorandum of Association. 

   

6 Approval for giving loans, guarantee, 

security making investments, u/s 185 

of Companies Act,  2013. 
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7 Approval of Members for increase in 
the limits applicable for making 
investments / extending loans and 
giving guarantees or providing 
securities in connection with loans to 
Persons / Bodies Corporate u/s 186 of 
the Companies Act,2013. 
 

   

 

Signed this ____________ day of ________________, 2020 

 

Signature of Member(s)  

 

Signature of Proxy Holder 

Affix Revenue 
Stamp of not 
less than Re. 

1/- 
 

 

 

 

  

Notes:  

1. For the resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 
the 9thAnnual General Meeting.  

2. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting.  

3. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.  
4. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave ‘for’, ‘against’ or ‘abstain’ 

column blank against any or all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to 
vote in any manner as he/she may deem appropriate. 
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ART NIRMAN LIMITED 

 
Route map to AGM 

 
Venue: Club Babylon, S P Road, Nr. Science City Circle, Bhadaj, Ahmedabad 380060, Gujarat, 
India 
Time: 10.30 A.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Art Nirman Limited  
410, JBR Arcade, Science City Road,  
Sola, Ahmedabad – 380060, 
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